
Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 1 of 1 

STATE CAPITOL COMMITTEE 
Lieutenant Governor Cyrus Habib (Chair), Secretary of State Kim Wyman (Vice Chair),  
Governor Inslee’s Designee Kelly Wicker, and Commissioner of Public Lands Hilary Franz 

 
REMOTE ACCESS MEETING 

PLEASE ACCESS THE MEETING VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK:
https://des-wa.zoom.us/j/94389295789 

Passcode: 554398
 

AUGUST 10,  2020 
AGENDA 

Time Agenda Items Presenter Desired Outcome

3:00 1- Call Meeting to Order and 
Approval of the Agenda

Lt. Governor Habib Action: Approval of the agenda

3.05 2- AG Review of Statutes 
Pertaining to the State Capital 
Committee

Dave Merchant, 
Assistant Attorney 
General 

Informational- Committee discussion 
about the statutes that apply to SCC 
and DES.

3:30 3- Draft Policies and 
Procedures for SCC

Jeff Even, Deputy 
Solicitor General

Proposed Action- Committee 
discussion and adoption of Policies and 
Procedures 

4:00 4- DES Recommendations to 
the SCC

Chris Liu, Director, 
DES

Proposed Action: Request adoption of 
a motion to create a work group to 
update the SCC statutes. 

4:30 5- Review L&I/WSDA Safety
& Health Lab and Training 
Center- Predesign

Bill Frare, Assistant 
Director, DES

Proposed Action: SCC Approves 
Construction of the new building.

4:45 6- Public Comments and 
Closing Remarks

Lt. Governor Habib Informational- Public comments to the 
SCC.

5:00 7- Adjourn SCC Meeting Lt. Governor Habib

Note: The SCC Chair may alter the duration of this meeting, and call for public comments or provide 
closing remarks at an earlier time than the designated times identified above.

Upcoming Committee Meetings Schedule:
Next CCDAC Meeting: Thursday, September 17, 2020; 10AM-12PM (Location TBD)
Next SCC Meeting: Thursday, October 15, 2020; 10AM-12PM (Location TBD)





STATE CAPITOL COMMITTEE STATUTES AND REGULATIONS

43.17.070
Administrative committees.

There shall be administrative committees of the state government, which shall be known as: (1) The state 
finance committee and (2) the state capitol committee.

[1982 c 40 § 8; 1965 c 8 § 43.17.070. Prior: 1929 c 115 § 3; 1921 c 7 § 4; RRS § 10762.]

43.34.010
Composition of committee.

The governor or the governor's designee, the lieutenant governor, the secretary of state, and the 
commissioner of public lands, ex officio, shall constitute the state capitol committee.

[1997 c 279 § 1; 1979 ex.s. c 57 § 10; 1965 c 8 § 43.34.010. Prior: 1961 c 300 § 5; 1921 c 7 § 8; RRS § 
10766.]

43.34.015
Secretary of committee—Committee records.

The commissioner of public lands shall be the secretary of the state capitol committee, but the committee 
may appoint a suitable person as acting secretary thereof, and fix his or her compensation. However, all records of 
the committee shall be filed in the office of the commissioner of public lands.

[1997 c 279 § 2; 1965 c 8 § 43.34.015. Prior: 1959 c 257 § 45; 1909 c 69 § 1; RRS § 7897. Formerly RCW 
79.24.080.]



43.34.040
Buildings—Erection—Improvements.

The state capitol committee may erect one or more permanent buildings; one or more temporary buildings; 
excavate or partially excavate for any such building or buildings; partially erect any such building or buildings; 
make other temporary or permanent improvements wholly or in part; upon the capitol grounds belonging to the 
state and known as the "Sylvester site" or "Capitol place" in Olympia, Washington.

[1965 c 8 § 43.34.040. Prior: 1933 ex.s. c 34 § 1; RRS § 7915-1.]

43.34.080
Capitol campus design advisory committee—Generally.

(1) The capitol campus design advisory committee is established as an advisory group to the capitol 
committee and the director of enterprise services to review programs, planning, design, and landscaping of state 
capitol facilities and grounds and to make recommendations that will contribute to the attainment of architectural, 
aesthetic, functional, and environmental excellence in design and maintenance of capitol facilities on campus and 
located in neighboring communities.

(2) The advisory committee shall consist of the following persons who shall be appointed by and serve at the 
pleasure of the director of enterprise services:

(a) Two architects;
(b) A landscape architect; and
(c) An urban planner.
The director of enterprise services shall appoint the chair and vice chair and shall provide the staff and 

resources necessary for implementing this section. The advisory committee shall meet at least once every ninety 
days and at the call of the chair.

The members of the committee shall be reimbursed as provided in RCW 43.03.220 and 44.04.120. 



(3) The advisory committee shall also consist of the secretary of state and two members of the house of 
representatives, one from each caucus, who shall be appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives, and 
two members of the senate, one from each caucus, who shall be appointed by the president of the senate.

(4) The advisory committee shall review plans and designs affecting state capitol facilities as they are 
developed. The advisory committee's review shall include:

(a) The process of solicitation and selection of appropriate professional design services including design-
build proposals;

(b) Compliance with the capitol campus master plan and design concepts as adopted by the capitol 
committee;

(c) The design, siting, and grouping of state capitol facilities relative to the service needs of state government 
and the impact upon the local community's economy, environment, traffic patterns, and other factors;

(d) The relationship of overall state capitol facility planning to the respective comprehensive plans for long-
range urban development of the cities of Olympia, Lacey, and Tumwater, and Thurston county; and

(e) Landscaping plans and designs, including planting proposals, street furniture, sculpture, monuments, and 
access to the capitol campus and buildings.

(5) For development of the property known as the 1063 block, the committee may review the proposal 
selected by the department of enterprise services but must not propose changes that will affect the scope, budget, or 
schedule of the project.

[2013 2nd sp.s. c 19 § 7015; 2011 1st sp.s. c 21 § 34; 1990 c 93 § 1.] 

43.34.090
Building names.

(1) The legislature shall approve names for new or existing buildings on the state capitol grounds based upon 
recommendations from the state capitol committee and the director of the department of enterprise services, with 
the advice of the capitol campus design advisory committee, subject to the following limitations:

(a) An existing building may be renamed only after a substantial renovation or a change in the predominant 
tenant agency headquartered in the building.



(b) A new or existing building may be named or renamed after:

(i) An individual who has played a significant role in Washington history;

(ii) The purpose of the building;

(iii) The single or predominant tenant agency headquartered in the building;

(iv) A significant place name or natural place in Washington;

(v) A Native American tribe located in Washington;

(vi) A group of people or type of person;

(vii) Any other appropriate person consistent with this section as recommended by the director of the 
department of enterprise services.

(c) The names on the facades of the state capitol group shall not be removed.

(2) The legislature shall approve names for new or existing public rooms or spaces on the west capitol 
campus based upon recommendations from the state capitol committee and the director of the department of 
enterprise services, with the advice of the capitol campus design advisory committee, subject to the following 
limitations:

(a) An existing room or space may be renamed only after a substantial renovation;

(b) A new or existing room or space may be named or renamed only after:

(i) An individual who has played a significant role in Washington history;

(ii) The purpose of the room or space;

(iii) A significant place name or natural place in Washington;

(iv) A Native American tribe located in Washington;

(v) A group of people or type of person;



(vi) Any other appropriate person consistent with this section as recommended by the director of the 
department of enterprise services.

(3) When naming or renaming buildings, rooms, and spaces under this section, consideration must be given 
to: (a) Any disparity that exists with respect to the gender of persons after whom buildings, rooms, and spaces are 
named on the state capitol grounds; (b) the diversity of human achievement; and (c) the diversity of the state's 
citizenry and history.

(4) For purposes of this section, "state capitol grounds" means buildings and land owned by the state and 
otherwise designated as state capitol grounds, including the west capitol campus, the east capitol campus, the north 
capitol campus, the Tumwater campus, the Lacey campus, Sylvester Park, Centennial Park, the Old Capitol 
Building, and Capitol Lake.

43.82.020
Approval by capitol committee when real estate located in Thurston county.

The acquisition of real estate, and use thereof, by State Agencies shall be subject to the approval of the state 
capitol committee when the real estate is located in Thurston county.
  [1965 c 8 § 43.82.020. Prior: 1961 c 184 § 2; 1959 c 255 § 2.] 

79.24.010
Designation of lands—Sale, manner, consent of board.

All lands granted to the state by the federal government for the purpose of erecting public buildings at the 
state capitol shall be known and designated as "Capitol Building Lands". None of such lands, nor the timber or 
other materials thereon, shall hereafter be sold without the consent of the board of natural resources and only in the 
manner as provided for public lands and materials thereon.

[1959 c 257 § 42; 1909 c 69 § 2; RRS § 7898.]



79.24.020
Use of funds restricted.

All funds arising from the sale of lands granted to the state of Washington for the purpose of erecting public 
buildings at the state capital shall be held intact for the purpose for which they were granted. Lands when selected 
and assigned to said grant shall not be transferred to any other grant, nor shall the moneys derived from said lands 
be applied to any other purpose than for the erection of buildings at the state capital.

[1893 c 83 § 1; RRS § 7896.]

79.24.030
Employment of assistants—Payment of expenses.

The board of natural resources and the department of natural resources may employ such cruisers, drafters, 
engineers, architects, or other assistants as may be necessary for the best interests of the state in carrying out the 
provisions of RCW 79.24.010 through 79.24.085, and all expenses incurred by the board and department, and all 
claims against the capitol building construction account shall be audited by the department and presented in 
vouchers to the state treasurer, who shall draw a warrant therefor against the capitol building construction account 
as herein provided or out of any appropriation made for such purpose.

[2013 c 23 § 260; 1988 c 128 § 62; 1985 c 57 § 76; 1973 c 106 § 37; 1959 c 257 § 43; 1911 c 59 § 12; 1909 
c 69 § 7; RRS § 7903.]
NOTES: Effective date—1985 c 57: See note following RCW 18.04.105. 

79.24.060
Disposition of proceeds of sale—Publication of notice of proposals or bids.

The proceeds of such sale of capitol building lands, or the timber or other materials shall be paid into the 
capitol building construction account which is hereby established in the state treasury to be used as in *this act 
provided. All contracts for the construction of capitol buildings shall be let after notice for proposals or bids have 



been advertised for at least four consecutive weeks in at least three newspapers of general circulation throughout 
the state.

[1985 c 57 § 77; 1959 c 257 § 44; 1911 c 59 § 10; 1909 c 69 § 5; RRS § 7901.]
NOTES: 

*Reviser's note: "This act" first appears in 1909 c 69 codified as RCW 79.24.010 and 79.24.030 through 
79.24.085. 

Effective date—1985 c 57: See note following RCW 18.04.105. 

79.24.085
Disposition of money from sales.

All sums of money received from sales shall be paid into the capitol building construction account in the 
state treasury, and are hereby appropriated for the purposes of *this act.

[1985 c 57 § 78; 1959 c 257 § 46; 1909 c 69 § 8; RRS § 7904.]
NOTES: 

*Reviser's note: For "this act," see note following RCW 79.24.060. 
Effective date—1985 c 57: See note following RCW 18.04.105. 

79.24.087
Capitol grant revenue to capitol building construction account.

All revenues received from leases and sales of lands, timber and other products on the surface or beneath the 
surface of the lands granted to the state of Washington by the United States pursuant to an act of Congress 
approved February 22, 1889, for capitol building purposes, shall be paid into the "capitol building construction 
account". Available revenues in this account shall first be pledged to state capitol public and historic facilities as 
defined under RCW 79.24.710. 

[2005 c 330 § 7; 1923 c 12 § 1; RRS § 7921-1. Formerly RCW 43.34.060.]



79.24.300
Parking facilities authorized—Rental.

The state capitol committee may construct parking facilities for the state capitol adequate to provide parking 
space for automobiles, said parking facilities to be either of a single level, multiple level, or both, and to be either 
on one site or more than one site and located either on or in close proximity to the capitol grounds, though not 
necessarily contiguous thereto. The state capitol committee may select such lands as are necessary therefor and 
acquire them by purchase or condemnation. As an aid to such selection the committee may cause location, 
topographical, economic, traffic, and other surveys to be conducted, and for this purpose may utilize the services of 
existing state agencies, may employ personnel, or may contract for the services of any person, firm or corporation. 
In selecting the location and plans for the construction of the parking facilities the committee shall consider 
recommendations of the director of enterprise services.

Space in parking facilities may be rented to the officers and employees of the state on a monthly basis at a 
rental to be determined by the director of enterprise services. The state shall not sell gasoline, oil, or any other 
commodities or perform any services for any vehicles or equipment other than state equipment.

[2015 c 225 § 117; 1977 c 75 § 90; 1965 c 129 § 1; 1955 c 293 § 1.] 

79.24.310
Number and location of facilities.

The state capitol committee may construct any two of the following three facilities: (1) A two story parking 
facility south of the transportation and public lands building in the existing parking area; (2) multiple level but not 
to exceed three story parking facility adjacent to the new office building; (3) multiple level but not to exceed three 
story parking facility adjacent to the new office building.

[1955 c 293 § 2.] 



79.24.320
Appropriations—Parking facilities, laboratories.

There is appropriated to the state capitol committee from the *capitol building construction fund for the 
fiscal biennium ending June 30, 1957, the sum of seven hundred thousand dollars for the purposes of RCW 
79.24.300, 79.24.310 and 79.24.320. Of this sum five hundred thousand dollars is to be used for parking purposes 
as outlined above and the remaining two hundred thousand dollars of this sum are to be used to complete the 
fisheries and health laboratories in the new office building on the contingency that it is necessary for the fisheries 
and health departments to move to Olympia.

[1955 c 293 § 3.] 
NOTES: 

*Reviser's note: Capitol building construction fund abolished and moneys transferred to capitol building 
construction account: RCW 43.79.330 through 43.79.334. 

79.24.330
Purchase of land for parking facilities authorized.

For use in the construction thereon of parking facilities in close proximity to the capitol grounds, the state 
capitol committee is authorized to purchase, at a price not in excess of one hundred thousand dollars, the following 
real estate situated in the city of Olympia, Thurston county, state of Washington, and more particularly described 
as: Lots two, three, six, and seven, block eight, P.D. Moore's addition to the town of Olympia, according to the plat 
thereof recorded in volume 1 of plats, page 32, records of said county.

[1957 c 257 § 1.] 



79.24.340
Purchase of land for parking facilities authorized—Construction of one-level facility.

After purchase of the said real estate the state capitol committee shall construct thereon one-level parking 
facilities suitable for as large a number of automobiles as may reasonably be accommodated thereon.

[1957 c 257 § 2.] 

79.24.400
Sylvester Park—Grant authorized.

The city of Olympia may grant to the state of Washington its right, title and interest in that public square 
situated therein and bounded by Capitol Way, Legion Way, Washington Street and East Seventh Street, and 
commonly known as Sylvester Park, and such conveyance shall in all respects supersede the terms and effect of 
any prior conveyance or agreement concerning this property.

[1955 c 216 § 1.] 

79.24.410
Sylvester Park—Subsurface parking facility.

The state capitol committee may accept such grant on behalf of the state. Upon receipt from the city of 
Olympia of the conveyance authorized by RCW 79.24.400, the state capitol committee may lease the premises 
thereby conveyed, to any person, firm, or corporation for the purpose of constructing, operating and maintaining a 
garage and parking facility underneath the surface of said property.

The lease shall be for a term of not to exceed twenty-five years and by its terms shall require the lessee to 
restore and maintain the condition of the surface of the property so as to be available and suitable for use as a 
public park. The lease shall further provide that all improvements to the property shall become the property of the 
state upon termination of the lease, and may provide such further terms as the capitol committee may deem to be 
advantageous.

[1955 c 216 § 2.] 



79.24.450
Access to capitol grounds on described route authorized.

The state capitol committee may construct a suitable access to the capitol grounds by way of fourteenth and 
fifteenth streets in the city of Olympia, and for the purpose may acquire, by purchase or condemnation, such lands 
along the said streets and between Capitol Way and Cherry Street in the city of Olympia, and construct thereon 
such improvements as the state capitol committee may deem proper for the purposes of such access.

[1957 c 258 § 1.] 

79.24.500
Property described.

The state capitol committee shall proceed as rapidly as their resources permit to acquire title to the following 
described property for development as state capitol grounds:

That area bounded as follows: Commencing at a point beginning at the southwest corner of Capitol Way and 
15th Avenue and proceeding westerly to the present easterly boundary of the capitol grounds on the west; thence 
proceeding northerly along said easterly boundary of the capitol grounds; thence proceeding easterly along the 
boundary of the present capitol grounds to a point at the corner of Capitol Way and 14th Avenue; thence 
proceeding southerly to the point of beginning; also that area bounded by Capitol Way on the west, 11th Avenue 
on the north, Jefferson Street on the east, and 16th Avenue (Maple Park) on the south; also that area bounded by 
Jefferson Street on the west, 14th Avenue on the north, Cherry Street on the east and 14th Avenue (Interstate No. 5 
access) on the south; also that area bounded by 14th Avenue (Interstate No. 5 access) on the north, the westerly 
boundary of the Oregon-Washington Railroad & Navigation Co. right-of-way on the east, 16th Avenue on the 
south, and Jefferson Street on the west; also that area bounded by 15th Avenue on the north, the westerly boundary 
of the Oregon-Washington Railroad & Navigation Co. right-of-way on the east, and 14th Avenue (Interstate No. 5 
access) on the south and west; all in the city of Olympia, county of Thurston, state of Washington, or any such 



portion or portions of the above described areas as may be required for present or future expansion of the facilities 
of the state capitol.

[1967 ex.s. c 43 § 1; 1961 c 167 § 1.] 

79.24.510
Area designated as the east capitol site.

The area described in RCW 79.24.500 shall be known as the east capitol site, and upon acquisition shall 
become part of the state capitol grounds.

[1961 c 167 § 2.] 

79.24.520
Acquisition of property authorized—Means—Other state agencies to assist committee in executing chapter.

The state capitol committee may acquire such property by gift, exchange, purchase, option to purchase, 
condemnation, or any other means of acquisition not expressly prohibited by law. All other state agencies shall aid 
and assist the state capitol committee in carrying out the provisions of RCW 79.24.500 through 79.24.600. 

[1961 c 167 § 3.] 

79.24.530
Department of enterprise services to design and develop site and buildings—Approval of state capitol 
committee.

The department of enterprise services shall develop, amend and modify an overall plan for the design and 
establishment of state capitol buildings and grounds [on the east capitol site] in accordance with current and 
prospective requisites of a state capitol befitting the state of Washington. The overall plan, amendments and 
modifications thereto shall be subject to the approval of the state capitol committee.

[2015 c 225 § 118; 1961 c 167 § 4.] 



79.24.540
State agencies may buy land and construct buildings thereon—Requirements.

State agencies which are authorized by law to acquire land and construct buildings, whether from 
appropriated funds or from funds not subject to appropriation by the legislature, may buy land in the east capitol 
site and construct buildings thereon so long as the location, design and construction meet the requirements 
established by the department of enterprise services and approved by the state capitol committee.

[2015 c 225 § 119; 1961 c 167 § 5.] 

79.24.550
State buildings to be constructed only on capitol grounds—Exception.

No state agency shall undertake construction of buildings in Thurston county except upon the state capitol 
grounds: PROVIDED, That the state capitol committee may authorize exceptions upon a finding by the state 
capitol committee that appropriate locations on the capitol grounds or east capitol site are unavailable.

[1961 c 167 § 6.] 

79.24.560
Department of enterprise services to rent, lease, or use properties.

The department of enterprise services shall have the power to rent, lease, or otherwise use any of the 
properties acquired in the east capitol site.

[2015 c 225 § 120; 1961 c 167 § 7.] 



79.24.570
Use of proceeds from site.

All moneys received by the department of enterprise services from the management of the east capitol site, 
excepting (1) funds otherwise dedicated prior to April 28, 1967, (2) parking and rental charges and fines which are 
required to be deposited in other accounts, and (3) reimbursements of service and other utility charges made to the 
department of enterprise services, shall be deposited in the capitol purchase and development account of the state 
general fund.

[2015 c 225 § 121; 2000 c 11 § 24; 1969 ex.s. c 273 § 11; 1963 c 157 § 1; 1961 c 167 § 8.] 

79.24.590
Use of private real estate and rights in site declared public use.

The use of the private real estate, rights, and interests in the east capitol site is hereby declared to be a public 
use.

[1961 c 167 § 10.] 

79.24.600
Severability—1961 c 167.

If any provision of RCW 79.24.500 through 79.24.590, or its application to any person or circumstance is 
held invalid, the remainder of RCW 79.24.500 through 79.24.590, or the application of the provision to other 
persons or circumstances is not affected.

[1961 c 167 § 11.] 

79.24.650
Committee duties enumerated.

The state capitol committee shall provide for the construction, remodeling, and furnishing of capitol office 
buildings, parking facilities, governor's mansion, and such other buildings and facilities as are determined by the 



state capitol committee to be necessary to provide space for the legislature by way of offices, committee rooms, 
hearing rooms, and work rooms, and to provide executive office space and housing for the governor, and to 
provide executive office space for other elective officials and such other state agencies as may be necessary, and to 
pay for all costs and expenses in issuing the bonds and to pay interest thereon during construction of the facilities 
for which the bonds were issued and six months thereafter.

[1969 ex.s. c 272 § 1.]

79.24.700
Findings.

The legislature finds that the historic facilities of the Washington state capitol are the most important public 
facilities in the state. They are a source of beauty and pride, a resource for celebrating our heritage and democratic 
ideals, and an exceptional educational resource. The public and historic facilities of the state capitol campus should 
be managed and maintained to the highest standards of excellence, model the best of historic preservation practice, 
and maximize opportunities for public access and enjoyment. The purpose of chapter 330, Laws of 2005 is to 
provide authority and direction for the care and stewardship of the public and historic facilities of the state capitol, 
to facilitate public access, use, and enjoyment of these assets, and to carefully preserve them for the benefit of 
future generations.

[2005 c 330 § 1.] 

79.24.710
Properties identified as "state capitol public and historic facilities."

For the purposes of RCW 79.24.720, 79.24.730, 43.01.090, 43.19.500, and 79.24.087, "state capitol public 
and historic facilities" includes:

(1) The east, west and north capitol campus grounds, Sylvester park, Heritage park, Marathon park, 
Centennial park, the Deschutes river basin commonly known as Capitol lake, the interpretive center, Deschutes 
parkway, and the landscape, memorials, artwork, fountains, streets, sidewalks, lighting, and infrastructure in each 



of these areas not including state-owned aquatic lands in these areas managed by the department of natural 
resources under RCW 79.105.010; 

(2) The public spaces and the historic interior and exterior elements of the following buildings: The visitor 
center, the Governor's mansion, the legislative building, the John L. O'Brien building, the Cherberg building, the 
Newhouse building, the Pritchard building, the temple of justice, the insurance building, the Dolliver building, 
capitol court, and the old capitol buildings, including the historic state-owned furnishings and works of art 
commissioned for or original to these buildings; and

(3) Other facilities or elements of facilities as determined by the state capitol committee, in consultation with 
the department of enterprise services.

[2015 c 225 § 123; 2005 c 330 § 2.] 

79.24.720
Department of enterprise services' responsibilities.

The department of enterprise services is responsible for the stewardship, preservation, operation, and 
maintenance of the public and historic facilities of the state capitol, subject to the policy direction of the state 
capitol committee and the guidance of the capitol campus design advisory committee. In administering this 
responsibility, the department shall:

(1) Apply the United States secretary of the interior's standards for the treatment of historic properties;
(2) Seek to balance the functional requirements of state government operations with public access and the 

long-term preservation needs of the properties themselves; and
(3) Consult with the capitol furnishings preservation committee, the state historic preservation officer, the 

state arts commission, and the state facilities accessibility advisory committee in fulfilling the responsibilities 
provided for in this section.

[2015 c 225 § 124; 2005 c 330 § 3.] 



79.24.730
Funding/grants for stewardship of state capitol public and historic facilities.

(1) To provide for responsible stewardship of the state capitol public and historic facilities, funding for:
(a) Maintenance and operational needs shall be authorized in the state's omnibus appropriations act and 

funded by the enterprise services account as provided under RCW 43.19.500; 
(b) Development and preservation needs shall be authorized in the state's capital budget. To the extent 

revenue is available, the capitol building construction account under RCW 79.24.087 shall fund capital budget 
needs. If capitol building construction account funds are not available, the state building construction account 
funds may be authorized for this purpose.

(2) The department of enterprise services may seek grants, gifts, or donations to support the stewardship of 
state capitol public and historic facilities. The department may: (a) Purchase historic state capitol furnishings or 
artifacts; or (b) sell historic state capitol furnishings and artifacts that have been designated as state surplus by the 
capitol furnishings preservation committee under RCW 27.48.040(6). Funds generated from grants, gifts, 
donations, or sales for omnibus appropriations act needs shall be deposited into the enterprise services account. 
Funds generated for capital budget needs shall be deposited into the capitol building construction account.

[2015 c 225 § 125; 2005 c 330 § 4.] 

WAC 200-230-020
Roles, responsibilities, and definitions.

As used in this chapter, the following definitions and roles apply:
(1) "Proposing entity" - Any individual or group advancing a proposal for placement of major or minor 

works on state capitol grounds.
(2) "State capitol committee" (SCC) - As established in RCW 43.17.070. The state capitol committee grants 

final approval for all development plans for state capitol grounds including the master plan, and for the design and 
site of major works to be located on state capitol grounds.



(3) "Capitol campus design advisory committee" (CCDAC) - As established in RCW 43.34.080(1):
The capitol campus design advisory committee is established as an advisory group to the capitol committee and the 
director of enterprise services to review programs, planning, design, and landscaping of state capitol facilities and 
grounds and to make recommendations that will contribute to the attainment of architectural, aesthetic, functional, 
and environmental excellence in design and maintenance of capitol facilities on campus and located in neighboring 
communities.

The CCDAC is further directed in 43.34.080 (4)(e) to:
…review plans and designs affecting state capitol facilities as they are developed. The advisory committee's review
shall include . . . (e) Landscaping plans and designs, including planting proposals, street furniture, sculpture, 
monuments, and access to the capitol campus and buildings.

(4) "Director" - The director of the department of enterprise services. Under RCW 43.19.125 the director 
 …shall have custody and control of the capitol buildings and grounds." The director provides preliminary reviews, 
evaluates proposals for major and minor works, and provides technical assistance to those proposing placement of 
major or minor works on state capitol grounds. The director approves minor works proposals.

(5) "Department" - The department of enterprise services.
(6) "Washington state arts commission" (WSAC) - As established in RCW 43.46.005 through 43.46.095,

and as specifically authorized in RCW 43.46.050: 
The commission shall meet, study, plan, and advise the governor, the various departments of the state and the state 
legislature and shall make such recommendations as it deems proper for the cultural development of the state of 
Washington. WSAC may undertake major works on the state capitol grounds as part of its responsibilities under 
chapters 43.46, 43.17 and 43.19 RCW. The site selection and criteria for these works shall be developed in 
compliance with the provisions of this chapter.

(7) "State capitol grounds" - Those grounds as defined in WAC 236-12-015(5), as follows:
Those grounds owned by the state and otherwise designated as state capitol grounds, including the west capitol 
campus, the east capitol campus, Sylvester Park, the Old Capitol Building and Capitol Lake, ways open to the 



public and specified adjoining lands and roadways and including the north capitol campus, Centennial Park, the 
Tumwater campus and the Lacey campus.

(8) "West capitol campus" - Those state-owned grounds that constitute the state capitol grounds west of 
Capitol Way, including all of the grounds addressed in the 1928 Olmsted Brothers landscape plan for the state 
capitol grounds and the state capitol historic district, as designated in the National Register of Historic Places.

(9) "East capitol campus" - Those grounds described in RCW 79.24.500 which includes the campus area 
north of Maple Park (16th Avenue) and south of 11th Avenue, east of Capital Way and west of Interstate 5 and the 
Interstate 5 entrance to the state capitol.

(10) "North capitol campus" - Those state-owned grounds north of the west capitol campus and west of 
Columbia Street, south of 5th Avenue and east of the Deschutes Parkway around Capitol Lake to the Interstate 5 
bridge.

(11) "Tumwater campus" - Those state-owned grounds in the city of Tumwater bounded on the west by 
Interstate 5, on the north by Israel Road, on the east by Linderson Way S.W., and on the south by Airdustrial Way 
S.W.

(12) "Lacey campus" - Those state-owned grounds in the city of Lacey, bounded on the north by Martin 
Way, on the west and south by Saint Martin's Park and Saint Martin's Abbey, and on the east by the Woodland 
Creek protection zone.

(13) "Master plan" - The master plan for the capitol of the state of Washington. As used in this chapter, 
master plan includes any subcampus plans for state capitol grounds that describe in greater detail the planned 
development and use of the areas covered by the master plan.

(14) "Major work" - Any statue, monument, sculpture, work of art, memorial, or other structural or 
landscape feature, including a garden or memorial grove, of notable impact to viewers and to its surroundings. The 
impact of a work is defined by the combined effect of its subject matter, size, placement, and the degree to which it 
commands the environmental context into which it is set. Examples include the Winged Victory monument 
commemorating World War I, and the Tivoli Fountain. The term does not include any such item located within the 
interior of a structure.



(15) "Minor work" - As determined by the director, a work of moderate or minimal impact to viewers and to 
its surroundings, defined by the combined effect of its subject matter, size, placement, and ability to blend into or 
contribute to the planned character of its immediate environment. Examples include individual or small groupings 
of plants such as trees or shrubs, benches and other campus furnishings, historic event or site plaques, small 
sculptural elements and artistic works.

[Statutory Authority: RCW 43.19.011, 43.19.620, 43.19.985, 43.19.742, 43.19.769, 39.26.080, 39.26.090,
39.26.251, 39.26.255, and 39.26.271. WSR 15-23-062, § 200-230-020, filed 11/13/15, effective 12/14/15. 
Statutory Authority: 2011 c 43. WSR 11-23-093, recodified as § 200-230-020, filed 11/17/11, effective 11/17/11. 
Statutory Authority: Chapter 43.34, 43.19 RCW and 1997 c 149 § 140(3). WSR 98-01-112, § 236-18-020, filed 
12/18/97, effective 1/18/98.]



POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR

STATE CAPITOL COMMITTEE (SCC)

1. Membership. Per RCW 43.34.010, the SCC’s membership shall include the governor 
or the governor's designee, the lieutenant governor, the secretary of state, and the commissioner of 
public lands. The secretary of state may delegate responsibility to the deputy or assistant secretary 
of state. The commissioner of public lands may delegate responsibility to the deputy commissioner 
of public lands.

2. Committee Records. Per RCW 43.34.015, the commissioner of public lands shall be 
the secretary of the SCC. The SCC may appoint a suitable person as acting secretary. However, 
all records of the SCC shall be filed in the office of the commissioner of public lands.

3. Officers. Members of the SCC will nominate and elect a Chair and Vice-Chair from 
among its members at the last meeting of the calendar year to serve a term of one year beginning 
the January 1st following the officer election. 

4. Meetings. In accordance with the Washington Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 
42.30), at the last meeting of each calendar year, the SCC shall adopt a regular meeting schedule 
for the following year. Meeting dates may be changed or canceled with pre-approval of the Chair 
and consent of committee members pursuant to RCW 42.30. Special meetings and work sessions 
may be called at any time throughout the year by the SCC Chair based. Notices and agendas for 
all meetings, regular and special, must be published in accordance with RCW the Open Public 
Meetings Act.

Executive Session may be called by the SCC Chair during a regular or special meeting. 
These sessions exclude the public from the meeting place and are subject to specific provisions 
outlined by RCW 42.30.110. 

The SCC Chair has full discretion on whether public comments will be entertained on 
items intended primarily for committee discussion and action.

5. Annual Requirements.
a. The SCC will have a joint meeting with CCDAC annually for CCDAC to provide 

SCC with a briefing and for the two committees to exchange information and topics 
of interest for the following year. 

b. The SCC will receive an annual informational briefing from the Office of Financial 
Management’s Facilities Oversight Program on the Six-Year Facilities Plan, any 
anticipated needs of state agencies with offices in the SCC’s jurisdiction, and any 
other relevant information.

c. The SCC will receive an annual report for the committee’s consideration and 
adoption from the Director of DES on the agency’s policy direction regarding 



stewardship, preservation, operation, and maintenance of the public and historic 
facilities of the state capitol.

d. The SCC will receive an annual review of the state’s available and potential project 
sites and the SCC’s Capital Grounds Master Plan, and will adopt any revisions or 
additions to the Plan deemed necessary by the Committee.

6. Powers and Duties of Committee. The SCC shall:
a. Provide for the construction, remodeling, and furnishing of capitol office buildings, 

parking facilities, the Governor's Mansion, and such other buildings and facilities 
as are determined by the SCC to be necessary to provide space for the legislature 
by way of offices, committee rooms, hearing rooms, and work rooms, and to 
provide executive office space and housing for the governor, and to provide 
executive office space for other elective officials and such other state agencies as 
may be necessary, and to pay for all costs and expenses in issuing the bonds and to 
pay interest thereon during construction of the facilities for which the bonds were 
issued and six months thereafter, in accordance with RCW 79.24.650.

b. Approve or reject any and all acquisitions of real estate in Thurston County, in 
accordance with RCW 43.82.020.

c. Approve or reject any construction of state buildings in Thurston not located on the 
state capitol grounds, in accordance with RCW 79.24.550.

d. Acquire property by gift, exchange, purchase, option to purchase, condemnation or 
other means of acquisition not expressly prohibited by law, and in accordance with
RCW 79.24.520.

e. Approve or reject any plan for the design and establishment of state capitol
buildings and grounds on the east capitol site, in accordance with RCW 79.24.530.

f. Approve or reject requirements for the construction of buildings on the east capitol 
site, in accordance with RCW 79.24.540.

g. Construct buildings on the “Sylvester site” or “Capitol place” in Olympia, in 
accordance with RCW 43.34.040.

h. Make recommendations to the Legislature regarding the names of new and existing 
buildings, as well as new and existing rooms and spaces within buildings, on the 
State Capitol Grounds, in accordance with RCW 43.34.090.

i. Construct parking facilities on state capitol grounds, in accordance with RCW 
79.24.300.

j. Determine the policy direction of the Department of Enterprise Services regarding 
the stewardship, preservation, operation, and maintenance of the public and historic 
facilities of the state capitol, in accordance with RCW 79.24.720.

k. Grant final approval for all development plans for state capitol grounds including 
the master plan, and for the design and siting of major works to be located on state 
capitol grounds, in accordance with WAC 200-230-020(2).



7. Statement of Policy. The State Capitol Committee that all matters presented to it for 
decision will be presented  at a time when rejection of a proposal or a request for alternatives to 
a proposal will not unduly delay the completion of a project or make it necessary to schedule a 
special meeting of the Committee. If the legislature appropriates funds or directs DES to execute 
a project or task that requires approval from the Committee, the SCC anticipates and expects that 
all items will be presented to the committee in advance of the expenditure of any funds for said 
project or task.

8. Meeting Agenda. The Committee expects that the DES, as staff for the Committee, 
shall prepare an agenda for all regular meetings, including both items requested by Committee 
members and by DES. The agenda must be submitted to the Chair for approval at least ten 
workings days before a regular meeting. Once approved, staff shall distribute that agenda and 
meeting materials to all committee members at least five working days before a regular meeting.
Agendas shall consist of informational items and decisional items. 

a. Informational Items: Informational items shall consist of information regarding 
any item for which Committee approval is eventually required. DES shall present 
informational items at such times as to facilitate Committee understanding of, and 
input into, all items for which Committee approval is eventually required.

b. Decisional Items. All items for which Committee approval is required must be 
presented as described in part (9).

9. Requests for Committee Approval. All agenda items that require the approval of the 
SCC as described in Section 6, above, must include, at a minimum, a recommendation by DES
and not fewer than one alternative for the SCC’s consideration. Each item must include a 
statement of the advantages and disadvantages of each potential course of action and the reasons 
why the recommended decision is preferred. The SCC may, in its discretion, approve the 
recommended decision or any alternative, or direct DES to return to a future meeting with 
additional information or alternatives. If the SCC does not approve DES’s recommendation, it 
may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future meeting. DES may not move forward 
with a project or task that requires Committee approval without the required approval.

a. Agenda items related to capital projects and/or property acquisition. DES shall 
present as informational items all capital projects and/or acquisitions of property 
for which DES anticipates seeking budgetary authority from the Legislature, and 
that fall within the powers and duties of the SCC.

b. Requests for Committee approval of final action. All other requests for SCC
approval must be included in an SCC agenda as decisional items so that SCC 
consideration may take place in a timely way that will avoid delaying projects. Final 
approval is required:

i. At the last stage or phase of any project or item under which the State would 
be committed to expend public funds, or proposals for the acquisition or 
improvement of any real property, except as described in (iii), below;



ii. At the last step before making a recommendation to the Legislature 
regarding the naming of any building, room, or space within a building; and

iii. At adoption of development plans for state capitol grounds including the 
master plan, and for the design and siting of major works to be located on 
state capitol grounds. 

c. Informational Items. Agenda items within the SCC’s scope and powers require 
approval at different points in a project’s timeline based on the project. In order to 
provide consistency, DES will provide informational briefings to the Committee on 
project phases occurring prior to the Committee’s approval. The first briefing of a 
project must include a project timeline that highlights the various project phases, at 
what points the project will require SCC approval, and a timeline of additional 
approvals needed from other state agencies and organizations.

d. Signature Sheets. The committee shall operate under Reeds Rules of Order. DES
staff shall provide signature sheets for SCC members to indicate approval or 
rejection of all items submitted pursuant to Section 9 above. Signature sheets will 
be included in the SCC’s meeting records.



Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 1 of 2

State Capitol Committee
August 10, 2020

5- L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Ctr- Predesign 
Purpose: Action

Sponsor(s): Labor and Industries; and Enterprise Services

Contact(s): Kevin Dragon, DES PPD Program Manager, kevin.dragon@des.wa.gov
Oliver Wu, DES Project Manager, oliver.wu@des.wa.gov  

Presenter(s): Bill Frare, DES Assistant Director of Facility Professional Services
Kevin Dragon, DES PPD Program Manager  

Description:
The Washington State Department of Labor and Industries (L&I) Division of Occupational Safety 
and Health (DOSH) and Washington State Department of Agriculture (WSDA) began predesign 
efforts 2018. The predesign efforts focused on addressing the lack of adequate lab and training 
facilities to meet L&I needs relative to worker injuries, illnesses and deaths, and to WSDA need 
for new laboratory spaces necessary for responding to animal disease outbreaks. 

L&I and WSDA currently operate from existing leased facilities that lack the space and 
infrastructure needed to support laboratory work with reliable results. These labs are essential 
to protecting the safety of our workers and food supply in Washington State. DES worked 
closely with representatives from both agencies to complete the L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab 
and Training Center Predesign Report, dated October 11, 2018. 

This predesign evaluated six different development alternatives, including a “no action” 
alternative, to meet the specific needs of both agencies. The predesign recommended a 
preferred alternative, which includes the construction of a new safety and laboratory and training 
center to serve both agencies.  The preferred site is adjacent to the Edna L Goodrich building 
located at 7345 Linderson Way SW in Tumwater, WA.

CCDAC Actions/Recommendations:
During a meeting held on May 16, 2019, CCDAC recommended the State Capitol Committee 
approve the L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign Report, prepared 
by KMB Architects and dated October 11, 2018 outlining the preferred development alternative. 

SCC Actions/Recommendations:
SCC was briefed of the final predesign and related findings by DES, L&I and professional 
consultant during a SCC meeting held on July 11, 2019. No action by SCC was taken at that 
time.



Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 2 of 2

Requested Action:

Move to approve the findings and recommendations as outlined in the L&I/WSDA Safety 
& Health Lab and Training Center Predesign Report, prepared by KMB Architects and
dated October 11, 2018

List of Attachments:

Attachment 5A: L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center- SCC Agenda Summary 
Sheet and related presentation materials excerpted from the SCC July 11, 2019 Meeting Packet

Attachment 5B: SCC minutes relating to L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center – 
Predesign Presentation excerpted from the SCC July Meeting Minutes relating to 



Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 1 of 2

State Capitol Committee
July 11, 2019

4- L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Ctr- Predesign
Purpose: Action

Sponsor(s): Labor and Industries; and Enterprise Services

Contact(s): Oliver Wu, DES Project Manager, 360-407-8534, oliver.wu@des.wa.gov

Dr. Reuben Amamilo, L&I Capital Project Director,
360-902-3515, reuben.amamilo@lni.wa.gov

Steve Reinmuth, L&I Assistant Director, Administrative Services Division,
360-902-4939, steve.reinmuth@lni.wa.gov

Presenter(s): Oliver Wu, DES Project Manager
Dr. Reuben Amamilo, L&I Capital Project Director
KMB Architects 

Description:
The Washington State Department of Labor and Industries (L&I) Division of Occupational Safety 
and Health (DOSH) and Washington State Department of Agriculture (WSDA) operate from
existing leased facilities that lack the space and infrastructure needed to support laboratory 
work with reliable results, which are essential to protecting the safety of our workers and food 
supply. For L&I, the lack of adequate lab and training facilities can lead to unnecessary and 
unintended worker injuries, illnesses and deaths. For WSDA, functionality in the existing lab 
spaces threaten the agency’s ability to respond to animal disease outbreaks, pest infestations,
industry labor disputes, and natural disasters. 

In 2018, the consultant team and steering committee comprised of representatives from both 
agencies with guidance from DES and OFM, began the predesign process. The group 
considered six distinct options, and the advantages and disadvantages for each alternative were 
thoroughly explored, including those of taking “no action.” Space programming necessitated
evaluating the spaces and existing programs to be included in the new facility and incorporating 
the programs which are underserved by the current leased facilities. The analysis identified 
efficient shared use space for office, core building functions and conferencing. Upon conclusion 
of this study, the group identified Option 2 as the preferred alternative, which meets 100 percent 
of the space needs (53,154 SF) for both agencies, and includes a DOSH-focused training 
center. This option provides a cost-effective and high-performing co-location facility that 
provides adequate, energy efficient laboratory, training and support space to protect the safety 
of Washington’s workers and food supply. 

Additional efficiency is achieved by the preferred facility location – the Edna Goodrich site at 
7345 Linderson Way SW in Tumwater. Three sites were evaluated by the steering committee 
and the consultant team. The civil engineering site analyses were prepared in accordance with 



Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 2 of 2

the requirements of the OFM 2019-21 Predesign Manual to evaluate potential building sites. 
The preferred site is state owned and exempt from latecomer fees. Although the site presents 
potential challenges, such as stormwater treatment and detention due to high groundwater, 
advantages include proximity to I-5 for access and deliveries. Most notably, the site is adjacent 
to the existing L&I Headquarters, which allows data/network/voice transmission to connect 
directly to L&I’s network and serve as extension of the HQ office building. Staff collaboration will 
be enhanced between the new Safety & Health Lab, Training Center and L&I Headquarters,
which is located within walking distance and serviced by public transportation.   

Related sections of the L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign Report, 
dated October 11, 2018, are attached to this summary and listed in the List of Attachments, 
below.   

CCDAC Actions/Recommendations:
During a meeting held on May 16, 2019, CCDAC recommended the State Capitol Committee 
approve the L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign Report, prepared 
by KMB Architects and dated October 11, 2018 outlining the preferred development alternative. 

Next Steps:
The next steps are as follows:

The predesign study will be submitted to OFM for review and approval.

In July/August 2019, DES and L&I will begin the selection of an architectural and
engineering consultant (A/E) and General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM).

Following selection, DES will enter into negotiations with the most-qualified teams about
an appropriate scope, schedule and budget.

DES will enter into agreements once appropriations are approved and project funding is
available.

Requested Action:

Move to approve the findings and recommendations as outlined in the L&I/WSDA Safety 
& Health Lab and Training Center Predesign Report, prepared by KMB Architects and
dated October 11, 2018

List of Attachments:

Attachment 4A: L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center – Predesign (excerpts), as 
prepared by KMB Architects and dated October 11, 2018.

Attachment 4B: L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center – Predesign Presentation,
as prepared by KMB Architects and dated October 11, 2018. 



6/25/2019

1

L&I / WSDA Safety &
Health Lab and Training Center
May 16, 2019

Project Stakeholders
Department of Enterprise Services
Bill Frare, Asst. Director, Facility Professional Services
Kevin Dragon, Program Manager/Acting Campus Architect

Labor and Industries
Randi Warick, Deputy Director
Steve Reinmuth, Asst. Director, Admin Services
Reuben Amamilo, Client Agency Owners Representative, Capital Projects Director

Department of Agriculture
Patrick Capper, Deputy Director
Steve Fuller, Asst. Director, Food Safety

KMB architects
Mark Beardemphl, AIA, Partner 
Bill Valdez, PE, Partner

L&I / WSDA SAFETY & HEALTH LAB AND TRAINING CENTER



6/25/2019

2

Problem Statement
Labor and Industries (Department of Safety & Health)
• First responder to prevent unintended worker injuries, illnesses and death

• Training Center – Inadequate/non-existent
• SHARP/Ergo Labs – Inadequate/deficient
• DOSH - condition deficient, undersized leased facility

WSDA
• First Responder to limit disease outbreak, pest infestation and protect Washington food supply

• Poor functionality of lab spaces
• Deficient, undersized leased space in multiple locations

LL&I / WSDA SAFETY & HEALTH LAB AND TRAINING CENTER

Recommended/Funded Alternative

A new shared facility 
for DOSH/WSDA which 
meets 100% of 
program needs that 
includes a DOSH-
focused training center.

Option #2 
53,154SF

L&I / WSDA SAFETY & HEALTH LAB AND TRAINING CENTER



6/25/2019

3

Project Goals
• Create a co-located, shared use efficient space including offices, conference

spaces and core building functions

• Facility compliant with Governors Executive Order 18-01 for “Net Zero Ready”

• High efficiency LEED Silver Certification in accordance with Executive Order 05-01

• Modern, accessible workplace in accordance with Executive Order 16-07 -
Building A Modern Work Environment

• Adequate facilities which meet agency mission, goals and RCW obligations

• Modern laboratories for reliable, expeditious results to better serve stakeholders

• Increase in availability of critical training programs for workplace safety

LL&I / WSDA SAFETY & HEALTH LAB AND TRAINING CENTER

Alternative Development Scenarios Studied

Option #1 
64,000SF

Option #6 
No Action

Option #3 
48,000SF

Option #4
30,000SF

Option #5 
51,325SF

Option #2 
53,154SF

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e

L&I / WSDA SAFETY & HEALTH LAB AND TRAINING CENTER



6/25/2019

4

Recommended Site

Site #3
7345 Linderson Way 
SW, Tumwater

• Close proximity to L&I
Headquarters

• Close proximity to I-5
for access and 
deliveries 

• No latecomer fees
• Nearby surface 

parking can be used 
for overflow parking

LL&I / WSDA SAFETY & HEALTH LAB AND TRAINING CENTER

Alternative Sites Studied

Site #1
930 88th Ave SE, Olympia

Site #2
300 Desmond Dr SE, Lacey

L&I / WSDA SAFETY & HEALTH LAB AND TRAINING CENTER



6/25/2019

5

Project Cost 

Major Assumptions:
Cost assumes GC/CM delivery
Competitive bid of all trades
Site work specific to preferred site
Does not include cost of contract admin by 3rd party 
project administrator
Site acquisition costs not included
GC/CM Risk Contingency: 3%
General Conditions: 13%
Contractor OH&P: 5%

LL&I / WSDA SAFETY & HEALTH LAB AND TRAINING CENTER

Project Schedule
L&I / WSDA SAFETY & HEALTH LAB AND TRAINING CENTER



6/25/2019

6

Q & A



State Project No. 2018-507

L&I / WSDA Safety & Health Lab and 
Training Center- Predesign

October 11, 2018
Prepared by 
KMB architects





Acknowledgments

KMB would like to thank the women and men of L&I and WSDA who shared with us their passion and the 
leadership both agencies provide for the protection and safety of the people of Washington State.  

L&I
Maurice Perigo

WSDA
Tracie Lindeblom

Client Agency Facilities Representatives:

Client Agency Business Owners Stakeholders:

L&I Division of Occupational Safety & Health 
(DOSH)
Janet Kenney, 
Lezlie Perrin, 
Alan Lundeen,  
Ryan Allen, 
Butch Chapin, 

Caitlin Kenney, 

Zach Green, 
Rick Goggins,
L&I Safety & Health Assessment and Research 
for Prevention (SHARP)
Dave Bonauto, 

WSDA
Yong Liu, 
Carol Larson, 
Jennifer Falacy, 
Angela Yoder, 
Chris Looney, 
Phil Garcia, 

L&I

Randi Warick, 
Anne Soiza, 
Steve Reinmuth, 
Dave Marty, 
Craig Blackwood, 
Trent Howard, 

WSDA

Patrick Capper, 
Brad White, 
Steve Fuller, 

Client Agency Executive Sponsors:

Project Contacts

Douglas McCudden Reuben Amamilo





Table of Contents

Title Page

1.0   Executive Summary

2.0   Problem Statement

3.0   Analysis of Options

  
4.0   Detailed Analysis of Preferred Option



5.0   Project Budget Analysis for the Preferred Option

6.0   Predesign Appendices

Table of Contents



1.0  Executive Summary



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

1.0  Executive Summary



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign



2.0  Problem Statement



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

2.0 Problem Statement

2.0 (A) Problems, Opportunities and 
Program Requirements

The Washington State Department of Labor and Industries 
(L&I) and Department of Agriculture (WSDA) face similar facility 
related limitations that threaten their effectiveness in serving 
the public as directed by the Washington State Legislature and 
in accordance with their missions and statutory requirements. 
These organizations have identified opportunities to increase 
their laboratory related safety and health programs effectiveness 
with a cost-effective and synergistic new facility. 

(DOSH)

The Department of Agriculture 

DOSH Training and Demonstration Areas

WSDA ELISA Laboratory



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Opportunity for Solutions

Major building functions that may be shared 
include:

• Office spaces
• Conference rooms, break rooms and restrooms
• Training and education spaces
• Building circulation, entry, loading & service 

entrance
• Parking for staff and visitors
• Laboratory support

Space programming 
identified 
approximately 5,589 SF 
of shared core building 
functions and office and 
3,224 SF of conference 
space, resulting in an 
efficient cost effective 
co-location facility. 

“ 

“ 

L&I WSDA Safety and Health Lab and 
Training Center
Conceptual Space Relationship 
diagram



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Washington State Department of Agriculture

 »
 »
 »

 »
 »
 »
 »
 »

RCW 43.17.010, and its 
 RCW 43.23.

[WISHA Act of 1973, Chapter 49.17 RCW].

2.0 (B) Statutory Requirements



Washington Department of Agriculture

Mission:  
Through service, regulation, and advocacy, the Washington State 
Department of Agriculture (WSDA) supports the viability and 
vitality of agriculture while protecting consumers, public health, 
and the environment.

Goals:  
A. The capability and commitment to carry out our mission 
effectively, efficiently and safely.

B. Consistent customer focus and satisfaction.

C. Consistent, effective and transparent regulation.

D. Effective partnerships and relationships.

Agency Mission and Goals

Washington State Department of Labor and Industries

Division of Occupational Safety and Health

Through our performance management program, Results L&I, we
adopted five key goals focused on achieving our mission to keep
Washington safe and working. Results L&I is aligned with key
goals of Governor Inslee’s Results Washington program and will
enable us to measure our performance, assess the results, make
improvements when needed, provide innovative services that
meet the needs of the public, engage with our customers, ensure
transparency of our operations, and hold ourselves accountable
to be good stewards of public resources.

Goals:
1. Make workplaces safe.

2. Help injured workers heal and return to work.

3. Make it easy to do business with L&I.

4. Help honest workers and businesses by cracking down on  
     the dishonest ones.

5. Ensure L&I is the emloyer of choice.



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Adequate facilities are critical to meeting the 
mission and mandates that direct the operation and 
management of the DOSH and WSDA programs.  
Inadequate facilities make the process of reaching 
goals difficult, if not impossible.  The predesign has 
helped identify existing facilities’ deficiencies that 
erode the effectiveness of the DOSH and WSDA 
programs and recommends building layout to optimize 
performance.

2.0 (C) Connection Between 
Agency Mission & Program Goals

By sharing common goals to promote the health 
and prosperity of Washington State, the team has 
approached this project with shared perspective to 
build on common ground.  

L&I Laboratory

Photo of DOSH 
Training Class

WSDA Storage



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

2.0 (D) Solutions

The proposed facility will be designed to solve quality 
and quantity of space and infrastructure needs for 
both Washington State Department of Agriculture and 
Labor and Industries. A well designed facility will allow 
both organizations to fulfill their statutory obligations 
and place the state of Washington at the forefront of 
excellence in workplace and food/agricultural safety. 

53,154 square feet

Construction of a new shared 
facility creates the opportunity 
to implement sustainable 
design practices and meet state 
requirements for Net Zero Ready 
technology. 

Project team touring 

L&I/WSDA Shared 
Facility 
Concept Sketch



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

2.0 (E) Prior Planning Study Efforts

Washington State Department of Agriculture

As the result of these study efforts, the Legislature appropriated funds for the Department of Labor 
and Industries and requested collaboration with the Washington State Department of Agriculture for a 
shared use facility. 

2014 Concept for L&I Only Facility



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

3.0  Analysis of Options



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

3.0 Analysis of Options

3.0 (A) Description of Options

The following options were considered for the shared facility:

Option #1: 
A new shared facility for DOSH/WSDA which meets 100% of program needs 
and includes an agency wide training center

Option #2:  
A new shared facility for DOSH/WSDA which meets 100% of program needs 
that includes a DOSH-focused training center 



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Option #3:  
A new shared facility for DOSH/WSDA which includes a shared lab building 
only, and does not include a training center

Option #4:  
A new shared facility for DOSH/WSDA which includes a shared lab building 
only, and does not include a training center. (Limited to 30,000 SF)



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Option #6: No Action
No construction of a new DOSH/WSDA 
shared facility

i. No Action Option

 
Space available at current facilities 
does not adequately support key 
services critical to the health and 
prosperity of Washington State. 

Option #5:   
Construct the L&I portion of the building first with larger core and 
construct Department of Agriculture facilities in a phased approach



ii. Advantages & Disadvantages of Each Option

Advantages Disadvantages

Option 1:

needs and includes an 

center

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

• 

Option #2

center

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

Option #3

center

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Option #4 • 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

Option #5 • 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

Option #6:
No Action

• • 

• 
• 

needs
• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
O

pt
io

n



iii. Cost Estimates for Each Alternative

iii. (a) Project Costs Overview

The table on page 28 summarizes total project cost range 
for (5) options considered for the proposed new L&I/WSDA 
Laboratory and Training Center.

 in 

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
O

pt
io

n



Project Costs for Each Option

Diagram Cost Estimate Range
Option 1:

$62,400,000 - $67,300,000

Option #2

$49,200,000 - $53,100,000

Option #3

$43,000,000 - $46,400,000

Option #4

$32,700,000 - $35,300,000

Option #5

Project Total
$56,700,000 - $61,200,000

Option #6:
No Action

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
O

pt
io

n



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

iii. (b) Life Cycle Cost Model Comparison

Baseline Building: LEED Silver project, constructed Code Compliant
Alternative 1:  LEED Silver project, with High Efficiency Components
Alternative 2:  LEED Gold project, Zero Energy Capable

Summary of life cycle costs (over 50 years):

Building and Systems Description

Baseline Building (LEED Silver):

Alternative 1 Building (LEED Silver, High Eff): 

Alternative 2 Building (Zero Energy Capable):

Energy Rates

LCCT Option 50-Year Life Cycle Cost CO2 Emissions (Tons)

Baseline Building (LEED Silver) $ 56,271,733 21,268

Alternative 1 (LEED Silver, High Eff) $ 56,292,896 18,723

Alternative 2 (Zero Energy Capable) $ 56,202,071 15,812



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Office of Financial Management
Olympia, Washington - Version: 2016-A
Life Cycle Cost Analysis Tool
General Information Page

Project Name
Address
City
Zip Code
Building Square Feet (Gross)
Useable Square Feet
Building Type (i.e. Office, School)
Construction Type (i.e. New, Retrofit)
Project Phase
Report Version/Revision
Date of Report

Company Name
User First Name
User Last Name
Contact Number
Contact Email

  OFM   User Value
Building Life 50 50 50
Real Discount Rate 0.44% 0.44% 0.44%
Standard Maintenance Escalation 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
General Inflation 3.01% 3.01% 3.01%
Study Period (years) 51 51 51

Year(s)
Base Year (Generally Current Year) 2018
Additional Construction Years beyond 2018 1 1st Operation Year =  2020

Baseline   Alt. 1   Alt. 2

Down Payment (%) 20% 20% 20%
Term (Years) 15 15 15
Nominal Interest Rate 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Real Interest Rate 0.97% 0.97% 0.97%

38,941

9/28/2018
1
Other

L & I | WSDA Safety & Health 

Fuel Escalation Assumptions Located on Fuel Escalation Page

98501
Tumwater
7345 Linderson Way SW

michaelt@hultzbhu.com
253-383-3257
Tagles
Michael
Hultz|BHU Engineers

53,154

Lab and Training Center
New

Costs



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Office of Financial Management
Olympia, Washington - Version: 2016-A
Life Cycle Cost Analysis Tool
Executive Report

Project:
Address:
Company:
Contact:
Contact Phone:
Contact Email:

Study Period (years) 51 Gross (Sq.Ft) 53,154
Nominal Discount Rate 3.46% Useable (Sq.Ft) 38,941
Maintenance Escalation 1.00% Space Efficiency 73.3%
Zero Year (Current Year) 2018 Project Phase 0
Construction Years 1 Building Type 0

Life Cycle Cost Analysis BEST
Alternative Baseline Alt. 1 Alt. 2
Energy Use Intenstity (kBtu/sq.ft) 79.7 70.1 59.2
1st Construction Costs 43,235,933$                          43,516,695$                          43,742,102$                           
PV of Capital Costs 50,767,032$                          51,271,969$                          51,736,566$                           
PV of Maintenance Costs 670,717$                                726,002$                                754,562$                                 
PV of Utility Costs 4,833,984$                             4,294,924$                             3,710,943$                              
Total Life Cycle Cost (LCC) 56,271,733$                          56,292,896$                          56,202,071$                           
Net Present Savings (NPS) N/A (21,163)$                                 69,662$                                   

(GHG) Social Life Cycle Cost BEST
GHG Impact from Utility Consumption Baseline Alt. 1 Alt. 2
Tons of CO2e over Study Period 21,268                                     18,723                                    15,812                                     
% CO2e Reduction vs. Baseline N/A 12% 29%
Present Social Cost of Carbon (SCC) 1,925,977$                             1,695,532$                             1,431,952$                              
Total LCC with SCC 58,197,710$                          57,988,428$                          57,634,024$                           
NPS with SCC N/A 209,282$                                563,686$                                 

Project Information
L & I | WSDA Safety & Health 
7345 Linderson Way SW, Tumwater, 98501
Hultz|BHU Engineers
Michael Tagles

Baseline Short Description

michaelt@hultzbhu.com

Key Analysis Variables

253-383-3257

Building Characteristics

Societal LCC takes into consideration the social cost of carbon dioxide emissions caused by operational energy consumption

LEED Gold, Zero Energy Capable
Alternative 2 Short Description

LEED Silver, High Efficiency
Alternative 1 Short Description

LEED Silver Code Compliant

 $46,000,000

 $48,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $52,000,000

 $54,000,000

 $56,000,000

 $58,000,000

 $60,000,000

Baseline Alt. 1 Alt. 2

Societal Life Cycle Cost

PV of Capital PV of Maintenance

PV of Utilities PV of SCC

 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $60,000,000

 $70,000,000

 $80,000,000

20
18

20
22

20
26

20
30

20
34

20
38

20
42

20
46

20
50

20
54

20
58

20
62

20
66

20
70

20
74

20
78

20
82

20
86

20
90

20
94

20
98

21
02

21
06

21
10

21
14

21
18

Cumulative Expenditure Report (No-SCC)

Baseline Alternative 1 Alternative 2



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

O
ffi

ce
 o

f F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
O

ly
m

pi
a,

 W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

- V
er

si
on

: 2
01

6-
A

Li
fe

 C
yc

le
 C

os
t A

na
ly

si
s 

To
ol

as
el

in
e 

In
pu

t P
ag

e
10

0,
37

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

W
at

er
   

   
   

  
(C

CF
)

El
ec

tr
ic

ity
 (K

W
H)

N
at

ur
al

 G
as

 
(T

he
rm

s)
Di

es
el

/#
2 

(G
al

lo
ns

)
Ga

so
lin

e 
(G

al
lo

ns
)

LP
G 

   
   

  
(G

al
lo

ns
)

Di
st

ric
t H

ea
t 

(m
m

BT
U

)
O

th
er

 A
nn

ua
l 

Bu
ild

in
g 

M
ai

nt
.

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  7
,6

66
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  7

8,
48

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
4,

22
8 

Su
m

 o
f B

el
ow

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

89
 

   
   

   
   

  8
33

,1
09

  
   

   
   

   
   

  1
3,

91
4 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   $

   
   

   
   

  1
3,

41
0 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

89
 

   
   

   
   

  8
33

,1
09

  
   

   
   

   
   

  1
3,

91
4 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

To
ta

l M
ai

nt
.

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
8.

62
 

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

09
  

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

02
 

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   $

   
   

   
   

  1
3 ,

41
0 

RE
F

# 
of

 U
ni

ts
U

se
fu

l 
Li

fe
 

(Y
rs

.)

In
st

al
le

d 
Co

st
   

   
   

  
($

/U
ni

t)

1s
t Y

ea
r 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Co

st
 ($

/U
ni

t)

To
ta

l 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

 
In

st
al

le
d 

Co
st

 
($

's)

An
nu

al
   

   
  

W
at

er
 

(C
CF

/U
ni

t)

An
nu

al
 

El
ec

tr
ic

ity
 

(K
W

H/
U

ni
t)

An
nu

al
   

   
N

at
ur

al
 G

as
 

(T
he

rm
/U

ni
t)

An
nu

al
 

Di
es

el
/#

2 
 

(G
al

/U
ni

t)

An
nu

al
 G

as
ol

in
e 

(G
al

/U
ni

t

An
nu

al
   

   
   

 
LP

G 
   

   
 

Ga
l/U

ni
t)

An
nu

al
 D

ist
. 

He
at

 
(K

BT
U

/U
ni

t)

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
 Li

fe
 

(Y
ea

rs
) o

f 
Ex

ist
in

g 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

$ 
   

   
29

,9
10

,0
00

 
A A1

0
1

10
0

$1
,2

95
,0

00
.0

0
1,

29
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

B B1
0

1
10

0
$4

,0
99

,5
00

.0
0

4,
09

9,
50

0
$ 

   
   

 
B2

0
1

50
$6

49
,0

00
.0

0
64

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

B3
0

1
30

$1
,0

25
,2

00
.0

0
1,

02
5,

20
0

$ 
   

   
 

C
1

30
$3

,9
80

,0
00

.0
0

3,
98

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
35

3,
79

8
D

1
30

$4
05

,0
00

.0
0

$2
70

.0
0

40
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
82

7
35

,3
53

1
30

$9
95

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

80
.0

0
99

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
1

30
$8

89
,5

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

88
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1

25
$2

70
,0

00
.0

0
$6

,4
80

.0
0

27
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1

15
$7

20
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,6
20

.0
0

72
0,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1

30
$2

46
,0

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

24
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1

25
$2

,8
00

,0
00

.0
0

$2
,1

60
.0

0
2,

80
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

25
1,

71
9

13
,9

14
D4

0
1

40
$3

99
,4

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

39
9,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
D5

0
1

30
$2

,8
86

,7
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
2,

88
6,

70
0

$ 
   

   
 

13
2,

91
1

E
1

30
$2

,7
08

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,8

00
.0

0
2,

70
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

43
,6

54
F G

1
10

0
$6

,5
41

,2
00

.0
0

6,
54

1,
20

0
$ 

   
   

 
41

15
,6

75
Z Z1

0
1

50
$1

,2
42

,5
00

.0
0

1
50

$3
,9

56
,3

81
.0

0
1

50
$1

,5
20

,9
20

.0
0

1
50

$4
,6

52
,8

52
.0

0
1

50
$8

30
,2

73
.0

0
1

50
$2

39
,3

33
.0

0
1

50
$9

12
,5

52
.0

0
1

50
$1

61
,6

94
.0

0
Z3

0
1

1

Z1
03

0

Z1
06

0

Z1
03

0Su
bs

tr
uc

tu
re

Sh
el

l

In
te

rio
rs

Se
rv

ic
es

Eq
ui

pm
en

t &
 F

ur
ni

sh
in

gs
Sp

ec
ia

l C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
&

 D
em

ol
iti

on
Bu

ild
in

g 
Si

te
w

or
k

GC
/C

M
 o

r D
/B

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

os
ts

Z1
01

0

O
th

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

O
th

er
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
ts

O
ne

 T
im

e 
- U

pf
ro

nt
 C

os
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

s

Z1
05

0 Re
-O

cc
ur

rin
g 

An
nu

al
 C

os
t (

Tr
ac

k 
In

fla
tio

n)

De
sig

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
Z1

07
0

GC
CM

 R
ic

k 
Co

nt
in

ge
nc

y
Z1

08
0

Ar
t

D3
04

0
D2

09
0Ex

te
rio

r E
nc

lo
su

re
Ro

of
in

g

Pl
um

bi
ng

 F
ix

tu
re

s
D2

01
0

D3
09

0

O
th

er
 P

lu
m

bi
ng

 S
ys

te
m

s

El
ec

tr
ic

al

Fo
un

da
tio

ns

Su
pe

rs
tr

uc
tu

re

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n

D3
07

0
Co

nt
ro

ls 
&

 In
st

ru
m

en
ta

tio
n

Te
rm

in
al

 &
 P

ac
ka

ge
 U

ni
ts

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

Sy
st

em
s

D3
06

0

O
th

er
 H

VA
C 

Sy
st

em
s &

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

Sy
st

em
s T

es
tin

g 
&

 B
al

an
ci

ng

   
   

  S
ho

w
 A

ll 
En

te
re

d 
U

ni
ts

 (R
eq

ui
re

s R
e-

Fi
lte

r)

Su
m

 o
f A

nn
ua

l U
til

ity
 C

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

Be
lo

w
An

nu
al

 U
til

ity
 C

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

N
ot

 E
nt

er
ed

 B
el

ow

To
ta

l A
nn

ua
l U

til
ity

 C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
An

nu
al

 U
til

ity
 B

ill
 ÷

To
ta

l U
til

ity
 C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

An
nu

al
 U

til
ity

 B
ill

 [$
]

D3
05

0

En
tr

ie
s B

el
ow

 fo
r C

om
po

ne
nt

 S
pe

ci
fic

 U
til

ity
 A

na
ly

sis
 (C

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

pe
r U

ni
t) 

-  
To

ta
l B

ui
ld

in
g 

U
til

ity
 A

na
ly

sis
 A

bo
ve

To
ta

l B
ui

ld
in

g 
An

nu
al

 U
til

ity
 A

na
ly

sis

Pr
im

ar
y 

En
tr

ie
s B

el
ow

: #
 o

f U
ni

ts
 m

us
t b

e 
> 

0 
to

 b
e 

co
un

te
d;

 U
se

fu
l L

ife
 m

us
t b

e 
>=

 2



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

O
ffice of Financial M

anagem
ent

O
lym

pia, W
ashington - Version: 2016-A

Life C
ycle C

ost Analysis Tool

Alternative 1 Input Page
89,252

$               
W

ater           
(CCF)

Electricity (KW
H)

N
atural Gas 
(Therm

s)
Diesel/#2 
(Gallons)

Gasoline 
(Gallons)

LPG         
(Gallons)

District Heat 
(m

m
BTU

)
O

ther Annual 
Building M

aint.
 $                 7,666 

 $              69,065 
 $              12,521 

-
$                    

                           -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -   Sum
 of Below

                      889 
              733,489                   12,244 

                          -   
                          -   

                          -   
                          -   $              14,510 

                      889 
              733,489                   12,244 

                          -   
                          -   

                          -   
                          -   

Total M
aint.

$                   8.62 
$                   0.09  $                   1.02 

$                        -   
$                        -   

$                        -   
$                        -   $              14,510 

REF
# of U

nits
U

seful 
Life 

(Yrs.)

Installed Cost           
($/U

nit)

1st Year 
M

aintenance 
Cost ($/U

nit)

Total 
Com

ponent 
Installed Cost 

($'s)

Annual        
W

ater 
(CCF/U

nit)

Annual 
Electricity 

(KW
H/U

nit)

Annual      
N

atural Gas 
(Therm

/U
nit)

Annual 
Diesel/#2  
(Gal/U

nit)

Annual Gasoline 
(Gal/U

nit

Annual          
LPG        

Gal/U
nit)

Annual Dist. 
Heat 

(KBTU
/U

nit)

Rem
aining Life 

(Years) of 
Existing 

Com
ponent

30,192,000
$      

.
AA10

1
100

$1,295,000.00
1,295,000

$        
BB10

1
100

$4,099,500.00
4,099,500

$        
B20

1
50

$715,000.00
715,000

$            
B30

1
30

$1,025,200.00
1,025,200

$        
C

1
30

$3,980,000.00
3,980,000

$        
311341.976

D
1

30
$405,000.00

$270.00
405,000

$            
827

31464.081
1

30
$995,000.00

$1,080.00
995,000

$            
21

1
30

$984,500.00
984,500

$            
1

25
$285,000.00

$7,580.00
285,000

$            
1

15
$780,500.00

$1,620.00
780,500

$            
1

30
$252,000.00

252,000
$            

1
25

$2,800,000.00
$2,160.00

2,800,000
$        

221512.28
12244.144

D40
1

40
$399,400.00

399,400
$            

D50
1

30
$2,926,700.00

2,926,700
$        

116961.944
E

1
30

$2,708,000.00
$1,800.00

2,708,000
$        

38415.432
FG

1
100

$6,541,200.00
6,541,200

$        
41

13793.648
ZZ10

1
50

$1,242,500.00
1

50
$3,956,381.00

1
50

$1,520,920.00
1

50
$4,652,852.00

1
50

$830,273.00
1

50
$239,333.00

1
50

$912,552.00
1

50
$161,694.00

Z30
1

1

Total Building Annual U
tility Analysis

SHOW
Prim

ary Entries Below
: # of U

nits m
ust be > 0 to be counted; U

seful Life m
ust be >= 2

Entries Below
 for Com

ponent Specific U
tility Analysis (Consum

ption per U
nit) -  Total Building U

tility Analysis Above

Substructure

Annual U
tility Bill [$]

Annual U
tility Consum

ption N
ot Entered Below

Sum
 of Annual U

tility Consum
ption Below

Total Annual U
tility Consum

ption
Annual U

tility Bill ÷
Total U

tility Consum
ption

        M
anual Special Selection O

nly (Requires Refilter)
        Show

 Baseline Fields and Entered U
nits (Requires Refilter)

Foundations
Shell
Superstructure
Exterior Enclosure
Roofing
Interiors
Services

D2010
Plum

bing Fixtures
D2090

O
ther Plum

bing System
s

D3040
Distribution System

s
D3050

Term
inal &

 Package U
nits

D3060
Controls &

 Instrum
entation

D3070
System

s Testing &
 Balancing

D3090
O

ther HVAC System
s &

 Equipm
ent

Fire Protection
Electrical
Equipm

ent &
 Furnishings

Special Construction &
 Dem

olition
Building Sitew

ork

Z1030
Project Contingency

Z1030
GC/CM

 or D/B M
anagem

ent Costs

Z1010
Consultant Services

O
ther Project Costs

O
ne Tim

e - U
pfront Costs

Z1070
GCCM

 Rick Contingency
Z1080

Art

Z1050
O

ther Services
Z1060

Design Services Contingency

Re-O
ccurring Annual Cost (Track Inflation)

        Show
 Differences Betw

een Alternative and Baseline (Req. Refilter)

M
atch Baseline: Filter to Select All &

 Drag Copy O
14:S14 &

 U
14:AG

14



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

O
ffi

ce
 o

f F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
O

ly
m

pi
a,

 W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

- V
er

si
on

: 2
01

6-
A

Li
fe

 C
yc

le
 C

os
t A

na
ly

si
s 

To
ol

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

2 
In

pu
t P

ag
e

77
,1

99
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
W

at
er

   
   

   
  

(C
CF

)
El

ec
tr

ic
ity

 (K
W

H)
N

at
ur

al
 G

as
 

(T
he

rm
s)

Di
es

el
/#

2 
(G

al
lo

ns
)

Ga
so

lin
e 

(G
al

lo
ns

)
LP

G 
   

   
 

(G
al

lo
ns

)
Di

st
ric

t H
ea

t 
(m

m
BT

U
)

O
th

er
 A

nn
ua

l 
Bu

ild
in

g 
M

ai
nt

.
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  7

,6
66

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  5
8,

86
2 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

0,
67

1 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 S

um
 o

f B
el

ow
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 8
89

 
   

   
   

   
  6

20
,0

39
  

   
   

   
   

   
  1

0,
29

6 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   $
   

   
   

   
  1

5,
11

0 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 8
89

 
   

   
   

   
  6

20
,0

39
  

   
   

   
   

   
  1

0,
29

6 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
To

ta
l M

ai
nt

.
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

8.
62

 
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
09

  
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
04

 
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   $
   

   
   

   
  1

5 ,
11

0 

RE
F

# 
of

 U
ni

ts
U

se
fu

l 
Li

fe
 

(Y
rs

.)

In
st

al
le

d 
Co

st
   

   
   

  
($

/U
ni

t)

1s
t Y

ea
r 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Co

st
 ($

/U
ni

t)

To
ta

l 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

 
In

st
al

le
d 

Co
st

 
($

's)

An
nu

al
   

   
  

W
at

er
 

(C
CF

/U
ni

t)

An
nu

al
 

El
ec

tr
ic

ity
 

(K
W

H/
U

ni
t)

An
nu

al
   

   
N

at
ur

al
 G

as
 

(T
he

rm
/U

ni
t)

An
nu

al
 

Di
es

el
/#

2 
 

(G
al

/U
ni

t)

An
nu

al
 G

as
ol

in
e 

(G
al

/U
ni

t

An
nu

al
   

   
   

 
LP

G 
   

   
 

Ga
l/U

ni
t)

An
nu

al
 D

ist
. 

He
at

 
(K

BT
U

/U
ni

t)

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
 Li

fe
 

(Y
ea

rs
) o

f 
Ex

ist
in

g 
Co

m
po

ne
nt

30
,4

18
,4

00
$ 

   
  

.
A A1

0
1

10
0

$1
,2

95
,0

00
.0

0
1,

29
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

B B1
0

1
10

0
$4

,0
99

,5
00

.0
0

4,
09

9,
50

0
$ 

   
   

 
B2

0
1

50
$7

74
,0

00
.0

0
77

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

B3
0

1
30

$1
,0

25
,2

00
.0

0
1,

02
5,

20
0

$ 
   

   
 

C
1

30
$3

,9
80

,0
00

.0
0

3,
98

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
26

53
48

.2
75

D
1

30
$4

05
,0

00
.0

0
$2

70
.0

0
40

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

82
7

26
16

1.
14

6
1

30
$9

95
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
80

.0
0

99
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
21

1
30

$9
99

,5
00

.0
0

99
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1

25
$3

00
,0

00
.0

0
$7

,5
80

.0
0

30
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1

15
$8

70
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,2
20

.0
0

87
0,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
1

30
$2

59
,4

00
.0

0
25

9,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

1
25

$2
,8

00
,0

00
.0

0
$2

,1
60

.0
0

2,
80

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
18

62
71

.6
9

10
,2

96
D4

0
1

40
$3

99
,4

00
.0

0
39

9,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

D5
0

1
30

$2
,9

66
,7

00
.0

0
2,

96
6,

70
0

$ 
   

   
 

98
35

4.
36

2
E

1
30

$2
,7

08
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,8
00

.0
0

2,
70

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
32

30
3.

88
6

F G
1

10
0

$6
,5

41
,2

00
.0

0
6,

54
1,

20
0

$ 
   

   
 

41
11

59
9.

20
4

Z Z1
0

1
50

$1
,2

42
,5

00
.0

0
1

50
$3

,9
56

,3
81

.0
0

1
50

$1
,5

20
,9

20
.0

0
1

50
$4

,6
52

,8
52

.0
0

1
50

$8
30

,2
73

.0
0

1
50

$2
39

,3
33

.0
0

1
50

$9
12

,5
52

.0
0

1
50

$1
61

,6
94

.0
0

Z3
0

1
1

Re
-O

cc
ur

rin
g 

An
nu

al
 C

os
t (

Tr
ac

k 
In

fla
tio

n)

Z1
07

0
GC

CM
 R

ic
k 

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y

Z1
08

0
Ar

t

Z1
05

0
O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Z1

06
0

De
sig

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y

Z1
03

0
Pr

oj
ec

t C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

Z1
03

0
GC

/C
M

 o
r D

/B
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
os

ts

Z1
01

0
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

s

O
th

er
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
ts

O
ne

 T
im

e 
- U

pf
ro

nt
 C

os
ts

Bu
ild

in
g 

Si
te

w
or

k
Sp

ec
ia

l C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
&

 D
em

ol
iti

on
Eq

ui
pm

en
t &

 F
ur

ni
sh

in
gs

El
ec

tr
ic

al
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n

D3
07

0
Sy

st
em

s T
es

tin
g 

&
 B

al
an

ci
ng

D3
09

0
O

th
er

 H
VA

C 
Sy

st
em

s &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t

D3
06

0
Co

nt
ro

ls 
&

 In
st

ru
m

en
ta

tio
n

D3
05

0
Te

rm
in

al
 &

 P
ac

ka
ge

 U
ni

ts
D3

04
0

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

Sy
st

em
s

D2
09

0
O

th
er

 P
lu

m
bi

ng
 S

ys
te

m
s

D2
01

0
Pl

um
bi

ng
 F

ix
tu

re
s

Se
rv

ic
es

In
te

rio
rs

Ro
of

in
g

Ex
te

rio
r E

nc
lo

su
re

Sh
el

l
Su

pe
rs

tr
uc

tu
re

En
tr

ie
s B

el
ow

 fo
r C

om
po

ne
nt

 S
pe

ci
fic

 U
til

ity
 A

na
ly

sis
 (C

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

pe
r U

ni
t) 

-  
To

ta
l B

ui
ld

in
g 

U
til

ity
 A

na
ly

sis
 A

bo
ve

M
at

ch
 B

as
el

in
e:

 F
ilt

er
 to

 S
el

ec
t A

ll 
&

 D
ra

g 
Co

py
 O

14
:S

14
 &

 U
14

:A
G

14
Su

bs
tr

uc
tu

re

An
nu

al
 U

til
ity

 B
ill

 ÷
To

ta
l U

til
ity

 C
on

su
m

pt
io

n

S H O W
Pr

im
ar

y 
En

tr
ie

s B
el

ow
: #

 o
f U

ni
ts

 m
us

t b
e 

> 
0 

to
 b

e 
co

un
te

d;
 U

se
fu

l L
ife

 m
us

t b
e 

>=
 2

An
nu

al
 U

til
ity

 B
ill

 [$
]

An
nu

al
 U

til
ity

 C
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
N

ot
 E

nt
er

ed
 B

el
ow

Su
m

 o
f A

nn
ua

l U
til

ity
 C

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

Be
lo

w
To

ta
l A

nn
ua

l U
til

ity
 C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

   
   

  M
an

ua
l S

pe
ci

al
 S

el
ec

tio
n 

O
nl

y 
(R

eq
ui

re
s R

ef
ilt

er
)

   
   

  S
ho

w
 B

as
el

in
e 

Fi
el

ds
 a

nd
 E

nt
er

ed
 U

ni
ts

 (R
eq

ui
re

s R
ef

ilt
er

)
   

   
  S

ho
w

 D
iff

er
en

ce
s B

et
w

ee
n 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

an
d 

Ba
se

lin
e 

(R
eq

. R
ef

ilt
er

)

To
ta

l B
ui

ld
in

g 
An

nu
al

 U
til

ity
 A

na
ly

sis

Fo
un

da
tio

ns



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

O
ffice of Financial M

anagem
ent

O
lym

pia, W
ashington - Version: 2016-A

Life C
ycle C

ost A
nalysis Tool

aseline 
etaile

 R
eport

Present Value of Capital 
Costs

Present Value of 
M

aintenance Costs
Present Value of U

tility 
Costs

Total Present Value of 
Com

ponent or Group

50,767,032
$          

670,717
$               

4,833,984
$           

56,271,733
$         

W
-

$                             
-

$                            
-

$                            
-

$                            
A

771,916
$                    

-
$                            

-
$                            

771,916
$                   

B
4,731,922

$                 
-

$                            
-

$                            
4,731,922

$                
C

6,375,163
$                 

-
$                            

1,499,909
$                

7,875,072
$                

D
17,194,129

$               
579,651

$                   
3,066,790

$                
20,840,570

$              
E

4,337,674
$                 

91,066
$                      

185,069
$                   

4,613,809
$                

F
-

$                             
-

$                            
-

$                            
-

$                            
G

3,899,039
$                 

-
$                            

82,216
$                      

3,981,255
$                

Z
13,457,189

$               
-

$                            
-

$                            
13,457,189

$              
Z10

13,457,189
$                       

-
$                                     

-
$                                     

13,457,189
$                      

Z30
-

$                                      
-

$                                      
-

$                                      
-

$                                      
C.E.

-
$                             

-
$                            

-
$                            

-
$                            

Custom
 Entries

Re-O
ccurring Annual Cost (Track Inflation)

Total Building Life Cycle Cost

O
ne Tim

e - U
pfront Costs

O
ther Project Costs

Building Sitew
ork

Special Construction &
 Dem

olition
Equipm

ent &
 Furnishings

Services
Interiors
Shell

Building C
om

ponent List                         
All Values Sum

 To Their Parent C
ategory

1st Construction Cost

$43,235,933

Substructure
W

hole Building Entries (Capital = Financing)

        Show
 Values and Parent Categories O

nly (Requires Refilter)

Residual Value

$11,126,200

Present Value of Residual 
Value

$8,890,672

Cost W
eighted Average 

U
seful Life

57.6

 $(20,000,000)

 $-

 $20,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $60,000,000

2018
2020
2022
2024
2026
2028
2030
2032
2034
2036
2038
2040
2042
2044
2046
2048
2050
2052
2054
2056
2058
2060
2062
2064
2066
2068
2070
2072
2074
2076
2078
2080
2082
2084
2086
2088
2090
2092
2094
2096
2098
2100
2102
2104
2106
2108
2110
2112
2114
2116
2118

Total Expenditure Tim
eline

Capital

Financing

M
aintenance

U
tilities

 $(20,000,000)

 $-

 $20,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $60,000,000

2018
2020
2022
2024
2026
2028
2030
2032
2034
2036
2038
2040
2042
2044
2046
2048
2050
2052
2054
2056
2058
2060
2062
2064
2066
2068
2070
2072
2074
2076
2078
2080
2082
2084
2086
2088
2090
2092
2094
2096
2098
2100
2102
2104
2106
2108
2110
2112
2114
2116
2118

Present Value of Future Expenditures
Capital

Financing

M
aintenance

U
tilities



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

O
ffi

ce
 o

f F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
O

ly
m

pi
a,

 W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

- V
er

si
on

: 2
01

6-
A

Li
fe

 C
yc

le
 C

os
t A

na
ly

si
s 

To
ol

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

1 
et

ai
le

 R
ep

or
t

Pr
es

en
t V

al
ue

 o
f C

ap
ita

l 
Co

st
s

Pr
es

en
t V

al
ue

 o
f 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 C
os

ts
Pr

es
en

t V
al

ue
 o

f U
til

ity
 

Co
st

s
To

ta
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 o
f 

Co
m

po
ne

nt
 o

r G
ro

up

Sa
vi

ng
s t

o 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
Ra

tio
n 

(S
IR

)

51
,2

71
,9

69
$ 

   
   

   
72

6,
00

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
4,

29
4,

92
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
56

,2
92

,8
96

$ 
   

   
  

0.
96

W
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
A

77
1,

91
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

77
1,

91
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

B
4,

79
7,

63
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

79
7,

63
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

C
6,

37
5,

16
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
31

9,
28

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
7,

69
4,

44
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
D

17
,6

33
,3

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
63

4,
93

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
73

8,
64

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
21

,0
06

,9
37

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

0.
62

E
4,

33
7,

67
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
91

,0
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
2,

78
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

59
1,

52
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
F

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

G
3,

89
9,

03
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

74
,2

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

97
3,

25
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
Z

13
,4

57
,1

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

,4
57

,1
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
Z1

0
13

,4
57

,1
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

,4
57

,1
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
Z3

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

C.
E.

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

Bu
ild

in
g 

C
om

po
ne

nt
 L

is
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Al
l V

al
ue

s 
Su

m
 T

o 
Th

ei
r P

ar
en

t C
at

eg
or

y
To

ta
l B

ui
ld

in
g 

Li
fe

 C
yc

le
 C

os
t

W
ho

le
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

En
tr

ie
s (

Ca
pi

ta
l =

 F
in

an
ci

ng
)

Su
bs

tr
uc

tu
re

   
   

  M
an

ua
l S

pe
ci

al
 S

el
ec

tio
n 

O
nl

y 
(R

eq
ui

re
s R

ef
ilt

er
)

   
   

  S
ho

w
 V

al
ue

s a
nd

 P
ar

en
t C

at
eg

or
ie

s O
nl

y 
(R

eq
ui

re
s R

ef
ilt

er
)

1s
t C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
st

$4
3,

51
6,

69
5

   
   

  S
ho

w
 D

iff
er

en
ce

s B
et

w
ee

n 
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
an

d 
Ba

se
lin

e 
(R

eq
. R

ef
ilt

er
)

Re
sid

ua
l V

al
ue

Pr
es

en
t V

al
ue

 o
f R

es
id

ua
l 

Va
lu

e

$1
1,

21
3,

20
0

$8
,9

60
,1

92

Co
st

 W
ei

gh
te

d 
Av

er
ag

e 
U

se
fu

l L
ife

57
.4

Sh
el

l
In

te
rio

rs
Se

rv
ic

es
Eq

ui
pm

en
t &

 F
ur

ni
sh

in
gs

Sp
ec

ia
l C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

&
 D

em
ol

iti
on

Bu
ild

in
g 

Si
te

w
or

k
O

th
er

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

ts
O

ne
 T

im
e 

- U
pf

ro
nt

 C
os

ts

Cu
st

om
 E

nt
rie

s
Re

-O
cc

ur
rin

g 
An

nu
al

 C
os

t (
Tr

ac
k 

In
fla

tio
n)

 $
(2

0,
00

0,
00

0)

 $
-

 $
20

,0
00

,0
00

 $
40

,0
00

,0
00

 $
60

,0
00

,0
00

2018
2020
2022
2024
2026
2028
2030
2032
2034
2036
2038
2040
2042
2044
2046
2048
2050
2052
2054
2056
2058
2060
2062
2064
2066
2068
2070
2072
2074
2076
2078
2080
2082
2084
2086
2088
2090
2092
2094
2096
2098
2100
2102
2104
2106
2108
2110
2112
2114
2116
2118

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 T
im

el
in

e
Ca

pi
ta

l

Fi
na

nc
in

g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

U
til

iti
es

 $
(2

0,
00

0,
00

0)

 $
-

 $
20

,0
00

,0
00

 $
40

,0
00

,0
00

 $
60

,0
00

,0
00

2018
2020
2022
2024
2026
2028
2030
2032
2034
2036
2038
2040
2042
2044
2046
2048
2050
2052
2054
2056
2058
2060
2062
2064
2066
2068
2070
2072
2074
2076
2078
2080
2082
2084
2086
2088
2090
2092
2094
2096
2098
2100
2102
2104
2106
2108
2110
2112
2114
2116
2118

Pr
es

en
t V

al
ue

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
Ca

pi
ta

l

Fi
na

nc
in

g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

U
til

iti
es



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

O
ffice of Financial M

anagem
ent

O
lym

pia, W
ashington - Version: 2016-A

Life C
ycle C

ost A
nalysis Tool

Alternative 2 
etaile

 R
eport

Present Value of Capital 
Costs

Present Value of 
M

aintenance Costs
Present Value of U

tility 
Costs

Total Present Value of 
Com

ponent or Group

Savings to 
Investm

ent 
Ration (SIR)

51,736,566
$          

754,562
$               

3,710,943
$           

56,202,071
$         

1.07

W
-

$                             
-

$                            
-

$                            
-

$                            
-

A
771,916

$                    
-

$                            
-

$                            
771,916

$                   
-

B
4,856,374

$                 
-

$                            
-

$                            
4,856,374

$                
0.00

C
6,375,163

$                 
-

$                            
1,133,628

$                
7,508,791

$                
-

D
18,039,212

$               
663,496

$                   
2,373,987

$                
21,076,695

$              
0.72

E
4,337,674

$                 
91,066

$                      
138,009

$                   
4,566,750

$                
-

F
-

$                             
-

$                            
-

$                            
-

$                            
-

G
3,899,039

$                 
-

$                            
65,319

$                      
3,964,358

$                
-

Z
13,457,189

$               
-

$                            
-

$                            
13,457,189

$              
-

Z10
13,457,189

$                       
-

$                                     
-

$                                     
13,457,189

$                      
-

Z30
-

$                                      
-

$                                      
-

$                                      
-

$                                      
-

C.E.
-

$                             
-

$                            
-

$                            
-

$                            
-

Custom
 Entries

Re-O
ccurring Annual Cost (Track Inflation)

O
ther Project Costs

O
ne Tim

e - U
pfront Costs

Building Sitew
ork

Special Construction &
 Dem

olition
Equipm

ent &
 Furnishings

Services
Interiors
Shell

        M
anual Special Selection O

nly (Requires Refilter)
        Show

 Values and Parent Categories O
nly (Requires Refilter)

        Show
 Differences Betw

een Alternative and Baseline (Req. Refilter)

Building C
om

ponent List                         
All Values Sum

 To Their Parent C
ategory

1st Construction Cost

Total Building Life Cycle Cost
$43,742,102

W
hole Building Entries (Capital = Financing)

Substructure

Residual Value
Present Value of Residual 

Value

$11,294,000
$9,024,757

Cost W
eighted 

Average U
seful Life

57.2

 $(20,000,000)

 $-

 $20,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $60,000,000

2018
2020
2022
2024
2026
2028
2030
2032
2034
2036
2038
2040
2042
2044
2046
2048
2050
2052
2054
2056
2058
2060
2062
2064
2066
2068
2070
2072
2074
2076
2078
2080
2082
2084
2086
2088
2090
2092
2094
2096
2098
2100
2102
2104
2106
2108
2110
2112
2114
2116
2118

Total Expenditure Tim
eline

Capital
Financing
M

aintenance
U

tilities
 $(20,000,000)

 $-

 $20,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $60,000,000

2018
2020
2022
2024
2026
2028
2030
2032
2034
2036
2038
2040
2042
2044
2046
2048
2050
2052
2054
2056
2058
2060
2062
2064
2066
2068
2070
2072
2074
2076
2078
2080
2082
2084
2086
2088
2090
2092
2094
2096
2098
2100
2102
2104
2106
2108
2110
2112
2114
2116
2118

Present Value of Future Expenditures
Capital

Financing

M
aintenance

U
tilities



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

El
ec

tr
ic

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Sh

ee
t N

o.
 S

-8
A

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

at
e 

5/
1/

20
18

B
A

SI
C

 C
H

A
R

G
E

10
5.

74
$ 

   
   

   
   

Pe
r M

on
th

SC
H

 2
6 

& 
12

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e
5/

1/
20

18
EX

PE
D

IT
ED

 R
A

TE
 F

IL
IN

G
 A

D
J

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

Pe
r M

on
th

SC
H

 1
41

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
12

/1
9/

20
17

A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

T 
FO

R
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y 
23

7.
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
Pe

r M
on

th
SC

H
 2

6 
& 

12
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

5/
1/

20
18

EX
PE

D
IT

ED
 R

A
TE

 F
IL

IN
G

 A
D

J 
(F

O
R

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y)

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

Pe
r M

on
th

SC
H

 1
41

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
12

/1
9/

20
17

Sh
ow

n 
on

 B
ill

in
g 

St
at

em
en

t
TO

TA
L 

C
U

ST
O

M
ER

 C
H

A
R

G
E

34
3.

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

Pe
r M

on
th

O
C

T 
- M

A
R

A
PR

 - 
SE

P
D

EM
A

N
D

 C
H

A
R

G
E

11
.9

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
7.

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pe
r k

W
SC

H
 2

6 
& 

12
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

5/
1/

20
18

EX
PE

D
IT

ED
 R

A
TE

 A
D

J
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
Pe

r k
W

SC
H

 1
41

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e
12

/1
9/

20
17

R
EV

EN
U

E 
D

EC
O

U
PL

IN
G

 A
D

J 
M

EC
H

A
N

IS
M

 (S
ur

ch
ar

ge
)

(0
.0

6)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(0

.0
6)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

Pe
r k

W
SC

H
 1

42
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

5/
1/

20
18

A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

T 
FO

R
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y 
(0

.3
9)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(0
.3

9)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
C

re
di

t P
er

 k
W

 to
 a

ll 
D

em
an

d 
R

at
es

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e
5/

1/
20

18

Sh
ow

n 
on

 B
ill

in
g 

St
at

em
en

t
TO

TA
L 

D
EM

A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

E
11

.4
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7.
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
Pe

r K
W

A
LL

 M
O

N
TH

S
Se

co
nd

ar
y

Pr
im

ar
y 

C
re

di
t

TO
TA

L
R

at
es

3.
94

%
Pr

im
ar

y 
R

at
es

EN
ER

G
Y 

C
H

A
R

G
E

0.
05

71
81

$ 
   

   
 

(0
.0

02
25

3)
$ 

   
   

 
0.

05
49

28
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Pe

r k
W

h
SC

H
 2

6
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

5/
1/

20
18

LO
W

 IN
C

O
M

E 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
0.

00
07

07
$ 

   
   

 
0.

00
07

07
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Pe

r k
W

h
SC

H
 1

29
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

10
/1

/2
01

7
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 T
A

X 
TR

A
C

K
ER

0.
00

22
65

$ 
   

   
 

0.
00

22
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Pe
r k

W
h

SC
H

 1
40

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e
5/

1/
20

18
EX

PE
D

IT
ED

 R
A

TE
 F

IL
IN

G
 R

A
TE

 A
D

J
-

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
Pe

r k
W

h
SC

H
 1

41
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

1/
1/

20
14

R
EV

EN
U

E 
D

EC
O

U
PL

IN
G

 A
D

J 
M

EC
H

A
N

IS
M

 (S
ur

ch
ar

ge
)

0.
00

00
85

$ 
   

   
 

0.
00

00
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Pe
r k

W
SC

H
 1

42
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

5/
1/

20
18

Sh
ow

n 
on

 B
ill

in
g 

St
at

em
en

t
TO

TA
L 

EN
ER

G
Y 

C
H

A
R

G
E

0.
05

79
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Pe
r k

W
h

O
TH

ER
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

 C
H

A
R

G
ES

 &
 C

R
ED

IT
S

Sh
ow

n 
on

 B
ill

in
g 

St
at

em
en

t
PO

W
ER

 C
O

ST
 A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
T 

C
LA

U
SE

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Pe
r k

W
h

SC
H

 9
5

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e
12

/1
9/

20
17

Sh
ow

n 
on

 B
ill

in
g 

St
at

em
en

t
FE

D
ER

A
L 

W
IN

D
 P

O
W

ER
 C

R
ED

IT
(0

.0
01

78
6)

$ 
   

   
   

   
Pe

r k
W

h
SC

H
 9

5A
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

5/
1/

20
18

Sh
ow

n 
on

 B
ill

in
g 

St
at

em
en

t
EL

EC
TR

IC
 C

O
N

S.
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 C
H

A
R

G
E

0.
00

43
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Pe
r k

W
h

SC
H

 1
20

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e
5/

1/
20

18
Sh

ow
n 

on
 B

ill
in

g 
St

at
em

en
t

M
ER

G
ER

 C
R

ED
IT

(0
.0

00
20

2)
$ 

   
   

   
   

Pe
r k

W
h

SC
H

 1
32

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e
1/

1/
20

18
Sh

ow
n 

on
 B

ill
in

g 
St

at
em

en
t

R
EN

EW
A

B
LE

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
C

R
ED

IT
(0

.0
00

03
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
Pe

r k
W

h
SC

H
 1

37
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

1/
1/

20
18

TO
TA

L 
PE

R
 K

W
H

0.
06

02
92

$ 
   

   
   

 
Pe

r k
W

h

R
EA

C
TI

VE
 P

O
W

ER
 C

H
A

R
G

E
0.

00
12

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Pe

r K
VA

R
H

SC
H

 2
6

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e
5/

1/
20

18
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
T 

FO
R

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y 

C
R

ED
IT

3.
94

%
(0

.0
00

05
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
SC

H
 2

6
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

12
/1

9/
20

17
EX

PE
D

IT
ED

 R
A

TE
 F

IL
IN

G
 A

D
J

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
Pe

r K
VA

R
H

SC
H

 1
41

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
12

/1
9/

20
17

Sh
ow

n 
on

 B
ill

in
g 

St
at

em
en

t
TO

TA
L 

R
EA

C
TI

VE
 P

O
W

ER
 C

H
A

R
G

E
0.

00
12

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Pe

r K
VA

R
H

SC
H

 2
6 

&
 1

2*
PR

IM
A

R
Y 

- L
A

R
G

E 
D

EM
A

N
D

 G
EN

ER
A

L 
SE

R
VI

C
E



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

G
as Sum

m
ary Sheet N

o. S-2
Effective 1/1/2018

B
A

SIC
 C

H
A

R
G

E
33.98

$
N

A
TU

R
A

L G
A

S
D

ELIVER
Y C

H
A

R
G

E
422

       
Therm

s
@

0.397290
$           

167.66
$

G
A

S C
O

ST
422

       
Therm

s
@

0.361130
$           

152.40
$

O
TH

ER
 N

A
TU

R
A

L G
A

S C
H

A
R

G
ES &

 C
R

ED
IT S

G
A

S C
O

N
SER

VA
TIO

N
 PR

O
G

R
A

M
 C

H
A

R
G

E
422

       
Therm

s
@

0.017010
$           

7.18
$

M
ER

G
ER

 C
R

ED
IT

422
       

Therm
s

@
(0.002480)

$          
(1.05)

$

N
EW

 C
U

STO
M

ER
 R

A
TE, if applicable

Existing R
esidences and sm

all com
m

ercial buildings
422

       
Therm

s
@

0.170000
$           

>>
71.74

$       
See R

ule 7

SU
B

TO
TA

L
360.17

$             
Effect of city tax ** (if any)

@
TO

TA
L B

ILL
360.17

$             

*This is the effect of tax assessed on Puget Sound Energy by your city governm
ent.  This rate w

ill vary by m
unicipality.

B
asic C

harge
B

asic C
harge (Sch 31)

Includes:
Expedited R

ate Filing R
ate A

djustm
ent (Sch 141)

D
elivery C

harge
D

elivery C
harge (Sch 31)

Includes:
Low

 Incom
e (Sch 129)

Property Tax Tracker (Sch 140)
Expedited R

ate Filing R
ate A

djustm
ent (Sch 141)

R
evenue D

ecoupling A
dj M

echanism
 (Sch 142)

C
ost R

ecovery M
echanism

 Pipeline R
eplacem

ent (C
R

M
) (SC

H
 149)

C
ost O

f G
as

Includes G
as C

ost R
ates (Sch 101)

D
eferred A

cct A
dj (Sch 106)

O
ther N

atural G
as

C
onservation Program

 charges (Sch 120)
C

harges &
 C

redits
M

erger C
redit (Sch 132)

Includes:

SU
M

M
A

R
Y O

F TO
TA

L C
U

R
R

EN
T PR

IC
ES - G

A
S

R
ates in this sum

m
ary include the effect of all supplem

ental rate schedules except Schedule 1, M
unicipal Tax Adjustm

ent, w
here applicable.  In case of discrepancy betw

een sum
m

ary below
 and the 

rate schedules, the latter have precedence.

SC
H

 31
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L A
N

D
 IN

D
U

STR
IA

L G
EN

ER
A

L SER
VIC

E
N

atural gas custom
ers are billed according to the num

ber of therm
s of energy used.  Therm

s are calculated by 
m

ultiplying the hundred of cubic feet, or C
cf m

easurem
ent taken by the gas m

eter, by the relative heat content of 
the gas, or B

ritish therm
al unit (B

tu) factor.  For a custom
er w

ho used 80 C
cf during one m

onth, billing w
ould be 

based on 84 therm
s (80C

cf x 1.056 B
tu factor = 84.48 therm

s.)

H
ow

 A
 C

om
m

ercial/Industrial C
ustom

er B
ill Is C

alculated



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (A) Describe the Preferred Option

The preferred option for this  predesign is Option 
#2, the construction of a new co-located laboratory 
and support space with a DOSH-focused Training 
Center. 

4.0 Detailed Analysis of Preferred Option  
        (Option #2, Shared Lab + DOSH Training Facility)

Program Need   Space Requirement

WSDA Food Safety   5,355 SqFt
WSDA Commodity     893 SqFt

DOSH Training    7,734 SqFt

L&I/DOSH Labs   5,643 SqFt
L&I SHARP Ergo Labs  2,025 SqFt
Consolidated Spaces  5,589 SqFt

Total GSF   53,154 SF  
 

i. Nature of Space



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (A) Describe the Preferred Option
Complete Program



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (A) Describe the Preferred Option
Complete Program



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (A) Describe the Preferred Option
Complete Program



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (A) Describe the Preferred Option
Complete Program



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (A) Describe the Preferred Option
Building Configuration



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (A) Describe the Preferred Option
Building Configuration



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (b) Site Analysis

ii. Overview of Site Analysis

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Site 1: 930 88th Avenue SE, Tumwater, WA  

Overall this site is very buildable and the most straight-
forward from a development standpoint.  It is the smallest 
site, and does not provide any additional room for potential 
growth.  The presence of Mazama pocket gopher mounds 
all but excludes it from consideration.  For the size of the 
proposed facility, this site is not large enough to avoid the 
areas occupied by the Mazama pocket gopher.

Site 2: 300 Desmond Drive SE, Lacey, WA

The only site in the City of Lacey, Site 2 is a large parcel 
with multiple building sites and room for growth.  The 
requirements for frontage improvements and utility 
improvements by the City of Lacey exclude this site as 
an option.  Property acquisition related to the frontage 
improvements does not fit within L&I’s timeline.

Site 3: 7345 Linderson Way SW, Tumwater, WA

The preferred alternative, Site 3 is near L&I’s 
headquarters in Tumwater.  Although an initial Mazama 
pocket gopher survey indicated a potential presence 
of mounds found on the property, it was determined 
that gopher presence will not impact the project.  High 
groundwater will require costly stormwater facilities, 
and may include upgrading stormwater facilities on 
portions of the parcel that are previously developed. 

Development Costs Site Overview & Conclusion



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Advantages Disadvantages

Site 1: • 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 

Site 2: • 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Site 3: • 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

ii. Overview of Site Analysis Continued

Limitations
• 

• 

• 

• 

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
O

pt
io

n



Preferred Site - 7345 Linderson Way SW, Tumwater, WA

ii. (a)  Location

ii. (b)  Building Footprint

Parcel: 
Address: 

Abbreviated Legal Description: 

Permitting Jurisdiction: 

Site Acres:
Zoning: 

General Topography: 



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

ii. (c) Stormwater Requirements



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

ii. (d) Site Ownership

Property Owner:  

ii. (e) Easements and Setback 
Requirements

ii. (f) Construction & Occupancy Considerations:          
Sensitivity to Neighbors
North: 

South:  
West:  
East:  

ii. (g) Utility Extension or Relocation

Water:

Sewer:

Reclaimed Water:



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

ii. (h) Potential Environmental Impacts:

(i) Green Space and Natural Amenities

(ii) Required or Potential Site Mitigation

(iii) Wetlands and Shoreline Impacts



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

ii. (i) Parking and Access Issues

Frontage

building site
Full width frontage improvements required 
where no sidewalks are present today

Full width frontage improvements



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

ii. (j) Impact on Surrounding and Existing Development

Other Information

Site Development Costs

Parking



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (C) Consistency with Applicable Long-
Term Plans
 



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Applicable Washington Statutory Law

Applicable Adopted Codes & Standards

4.0 (D) Consistency with Laws & Regulations

(i) High-Performance Public Buildings

(ii) Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction 

(ii) Archaeological and Cultural Resources

Thurston County

4.0 (D) Consistency with Laws & Regulations



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (E) Further Study

Site Development
• 

• 

• 

State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) 

4.0 (F) Distinguishable Components 

i. Building Equipment Components

ii. Special Systems

 Temperature 
 Humidity
 
 Noise 
 Electrical

iii. ADA Accessible Design

Laboratory equipment at L&I and 



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

4.0 (H) Future Phases and Plans

4.0 (G) Building Commissioning 

4.0 (I) Project Management and Delivery Methods

i. Proposed Project Delivery Method

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Architect 
Civil Engineer 
Structural Engineer 
Mechanical (HVAC and Plumbing) Engineer 
Electrical Engineer 

 
Landscape Architect 
Geotechnical Engineer 
Security Consultant 

 
Archaeologist 

 
 

Energy Code Consultant 
Commissioning Agent 

 
 

Building Envelope Consultant 
Surveyor 

 
 

 
Value Engineering Team 

ii. Proposed Project Management Structure

4.0 (J) Schedule (Alternatives)



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

5.0 Budget Analysis



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

5.0  Project Budget Analysis for the Preferred Option

   

MACC PSF = $789/SQFT |  Total SQFT = 10,000 | Constructed 2009

 Washington State University Terre View Research Facility, Pullman, WA

 Marine Studies Building Project - Oregon State University Science Building, Newport, OR  

 Health Sciences Building - Central Washington University, Ellensburg, WA 

Health Sciences Building - Central Washington University, 
Ellensburg, WA

Marine Studies Building - Oregon State University, 
Newport, OR

5.0 (A) Cost Estimate

i. Major Assumptions used in Preparing the Cost Estimate

Facility is 

Sample of Regional Public Agency Health and Lab Buildings:



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

5.0 (A) Cost Estimate

i. Major Assumptions Used in Preparing the Cost Estimate

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 
• 



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Difference between 2014 Predesign and 2018 Predesign Project Budgets

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Thus, the 2014 Predesign facility escalated to 2021, sited on the preferred site, meeting the 2016 
Capital Campus Design Guidelines and Construction Standards, and complying with Executive 
Order 18-01 results in a total project budget estimate range of $897-941/gsf.



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

Selected Option - C-100 Summary



L&I | WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center Predesign

5.0 (C) Operation and Maintenance

i. Anticipated Impact of the Proposed Project on the Operating Budget

5.0 (B) Proposed Funding

Account Code Account Title Total Budget

Current Lease, Maintenance & Operations Cost

Current Square Footage 21,354

Annual Cost FY 14 Operating Cost GSF/YR

Leases $332,615.95 16.17

Janitorial $17,528.16 .85

Security $275.00 0.01

Garbage / Recycle $3,804.50 0.18

Utilities $97,276.48 4.73

Maintenance & Repairs $205,700.00 10

Grounds $10,285 0.5

Management - -

Road Clear - -

Pest Control - -

Total $692,723.76 32.44

Proposed Maintenance & Operations Cost

Proposed Square Footage 53,154

Operating Cost 
GSF/YR

Leases -

Janitorial 2

Security .10

Garbage / Recycle .13

Utilities 3

Maintenance & Repairs 2

Grounds .1

Management .94

Road Clear .09

Pest Control .05

Total                                                                        8.41
$447,025



5.0 (D) Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 
•  

ii. Five Biennia of Capital and Operation Costs

Operation & Maintenance for 5 Biennia

Current Square 
Footage FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 Total

Current Lease, 
Maintanance & 
Operation Cost

$692,723 $692,723 $776,135 $776,135 $776,135 $776,135 $776,135 $869,589 $869,589 $869,589 $8,651,023

Proposed with 
New Building $0 $0 $0 $0 $447,025 $447,025 $447,025 $447,025 $447,025 $500,851 $2,735,976



6.0  Document Appendices





STATE CAPITOL COMMITTEE
Regular Meeting

Legislative Building, Senate Rules Room
Olympia, Washington 98504

July 11, 2019
10:00 AM

Final Minutes- Approved by SCC on 09/19/19

SCC MEMBERS PRESENT:
Lieutenant Governor Cyrus Habib (Chair)
Josh Wilund (for Commissioner of Public Lands Hilary Franz)
Mark Neary (for Secretary of State Kim Wyman)
Kelly Wicker, Governor’s Designee

OTHERS PRESENT:
Reuben Amamilo, Department of Labor & Industries Chris Liu, Department of Enterprise Services
Pete Anderson, Cornerstone Architectural Group Cora McClarty, Department of Enterprise Services
Mark Beardemphl, KMB Architects Annette Meyer, Department of Enterprise Services
Sharon Case, South Capitol NH Assn. Ruben Nuñez, KMB Architects
Max DeJarnatt, City of Olympia Rachel Newmann, South Capitol NH Association
Kevin Dragon, Department of Enterprise Services Maurice Perigo, Department of Labor & Industries
Bill Ecker, KMB Architects Jennifer Reynolds, Department of Enterprise Services
Bill Frare, Department of Enterprise Services Jairus Rice, Employment Security Department
Mark Fromme, Department of Enterprise Services Shelly Sadie-Hill, Department of Enterprise Services
Rory Godinez, Washington Patriot Construction Neil Shaw, Washington Patriot Construction
Jeff Gonzales, Department of Enterprise Services Michael Van Gelder, Department of Enterprise Services
Valerie Gow, Puget Sound Meeting Services Oliver Wu, Department of Enterprise Services
Linda Kent, Department of Enterprise Services

Call Meeting to Order, General Announcements, and Approval of the Agenda - Action
Lt. Governor/Chair Cyrus Habib called the State Capitol Committee (SCC) to order at 10:03 a.m., and 
acknowledged members in attendance.

Approval of February 21, 2019 Minutes - Action
The minutes of February 21, 2019 were approved as published. 

Employment Security Building – Predesign - Action
Jairus Rice, Chief Information Officer, Employment Security Department (ESD), and Bill Ecker, Project Manager, 
KMB Architects, briefed the committee on the ESD Headquarters Building Renovation project.  Mr. Ecker is 
serving as the project manager and is leading the project on behalf of ESD.  

Mr. Rice reported the ESD Headquarters Building was constructed in 1961.  No major renovations to the building 
have been completed since it was constructed other than upgrading building systems periodically to address 
failures.  Major problems include all major building systems, inadequate or nonexistent building insulation, 
building envelope failures, leaking or cracked single-pane aluminum framed windows, inefficient or obsolete 
mechanical systems affecting the ability to maintain a comfortable environment for employees and customers, and 
the inability to meet current efficiency and performance requirements as required by Executive Order 18-01.  
Additionally, the building is experiencing significant functional and code deficiencies.  The building is neither 
ADA compliant nor ADA accessible.  Work spaces are not configured to current standards for the modern work 
environment.  ESD also has unmet organizational and institutional client space needs.  



SCC MEETING MINUTES- FINAL
July 11, 2019
Page 2 of 11

Mr. Ecker reviewed the predesign options and preferred recommendation moving forward. To assist KMB 
Architects, the team received a copy of the Building Condition Assessment report completed in 2006.  The 
thorough assessment was based on 2006 conditions, which continue to exist today. ESD also performed a self-
funded energy audit in 2017 documenting functional and lifecycle costs of all existing systems.  KMB Architects 
considered the information in addition to other directives guiding the predesign.

The recommended alternative is a major renovation of the entire building to include energy upgrades, interior and 
exterior cosmetic upgrades, and a seismic retrofit to meet current seismic standards.

Project goals (programmatic & functional) identified for the project include:

Create a co-located, shared use efficient space including offices, conference spaces, and core building 
functions.
Facility compliant with Governors Executive Order 18-01 “Net Zero Ready.”
High efficiency LEED Silver Certification in accordance with Executive Order 05-01.
Modern, accessible workplace in accordance with Executive Order 16-07 - Building A Modern Work 
Environment.
Improve facilities to meet agency mission, goals, and RCW obligations.
Maintain historic character of Capitol Campus architecture.
Enhance safety and building longevity in the event of a major earthquake.

The team studied several alternative development scenarios.  The first option considered renovation of the entire 
building without seismic bracing to provide an open office concept utilizing a semi-phased approach.  The team 
discounted the scenario because extending the schedule would be too disruptive for ESD to provide service and the 
alternative would be much more costly.  The second alternative was a major renovation including the seismic 
upgrades.  The second alternative was selected as the preferred alternative because of the necessity of upgrading all
building systems to extend the building’s life for another 50 years.  The third scenario as required by the Office of 
Financial Management (OFM) was a no action scenario. Because of the current and ongoing deterioration of the 
building, the team believes the no action option would be unwise.

The project cost of the preferred alternative speaks to the importance of using the GC/CM alternative delivery 
method, which provides competitive bids and input from the contractor during the design process.  ESD would 
vacate the building during the course of construction giving the contractor free access to the entire building and 
reducing the need to maintain building systems during construction.  Not included in the project cost is the contract 
administration cost; however, risk contingency costs are included of 3% for the GC/CM, 13% for general 
conditions, and 5% for the contractor overhead and profit (O&P).  Project cost is estimated to be $28.5 million 
escalating to approximately $31.4 in future costs.

The concept project schedule is based on the cycle of funding, programming, and commitment decisions.  The 
current schedule is dependent upon a supplemental funding request for design extending through the middle of 
2021 with the remaining funding received by the second biennium to establish a completion date by the end of 
2023.  The schedule is contingent on programmatic needs of the agency and legislative input and feedback.

Kevin Dragon, Program Manager/Acting Campus Architect, added that ESD and DES are working collaboratively 
on the schedule to line up with funding and agency goals and objectives.

Chair Habib inquired about the inclusion of security elements within the project.  The factors and considerations 
for the project appear not to include security other than for seismic safety and environmental sustainability.  He
asked about the mechanism that DES employs to incorporate security within the predesign component.  He
suggested a smart way could entail obtaining input from experts on the front end of the design effort to ensure the 
addition of state-of-the-art security supported through the state’s policy choices for security on campus. 

Assistant Director Frare advised that at this time, DES is incorporating safety and security components within DES 
processes, but not comprehensively.  For example, the Newhouse pre-design included a security subconsultant for 
advice on security.  DES also considered security during the pre-design efforts for the Child Care facility.  During 



SCC MEETING MINUTES- FINAL
July 11, 2019
Page 3 of 11

the ESD pre-design, security experts were not included; however, security could definitely be included during the 
design process.  As a state, one issue to resolve is whether the security aspect and the level of security should be 
included in a building’s design. Because of the broad range of security elements, such as shatter resistant windows, 
metal detectors, or other security features, it would be important to establish standards for Capitol Campus security. 
It is definitely easier to incorporate security features into the early design process rather than adding security 
features later.  DES is currently updating processes to include security features.

Chair Habib responded that although he does not wish to appear as an alarmist, it is not inconceivable that someone 
who perceives to be wronged by the state or received notice of a discontinued benefit or service could pose as a 
threat to the safety of state employees.  Today, domestic conflicts often spill into the workplace.  There are unique 
features to government, which is why it is difficult to enter a federal building in this country without going through 
a metal detector.  It is not inconceivable a disgruntled individual might do something rash or try to intimidate.  The 
Commissioner of ESD is a former United States Senate confirmed Ambassador who was subject to security 
protections while in federal service.  There are different dynamics in each individual workplace on the campus.
His concern at a process level is that it doesn’t appear security is factored within pre-design efforts for projects or 
an assessment by law enforcement experts to review security risks and vulnerabilities of buildings. Experts could 
present a menu of options and costs for review and consideration by the Capitol Campus Design Advisory 
Committee and the State Capitol Committee or even OFM.  That process should be included in the alternatives 
analysis.  

Assistant Director Frare acknowledged the comments and emphasized how opportunities are available to complete 
an assessment to develop security options during the design process.  

Manager Dragon added that the scope of the predesign did not include security; however, security professionals on 
campus were provided with a copy of the predesign.  He anticipates that ongoing conversations with ESD will 
speak to the some of the agency’s security initiatives and agency functions, such as whether additional hardening of 
the front entrance might affect how the agency interacts with clientele.  Those discussions would occur during the 
initial design phase to ensure against the loss of opportunities to ensure overall security of the facility. 

Chair Habib questioned why such considerations occur later in the process as those discussions should occur in 
concert during discussions on the scope of the project, seismic improvements, and environmental considerations.  
Manager Dragon advised that DES is evolving practices to include campus security, building maintenance, and 
ownership-related issues on property and encumbrances, which previously have been overlooked during predesign.

Josh Wilund asked whether current and future space needs were factored, as well as whether an analysis was
completed of building new versus renovation of the building.  Mr. Rice responded that all factors were considered 
and continue to be assessed in conjunction with new agency programmatic needs that emerged from the last 
legislative session.  The Executive Leadership Team of ESD has scheduled a discussion on how the project will 
relate to future space needs.  The option of a new building was considered but because the ESD Building was 
funded with federal dollars in 1961, any demolition or sale of the building would require a payback to the federal 
government.  

Manager Dragon pointed out that from a design perspective the ESD Building is a twin to the Highway Licensing 
Building.  The master plan for East Campus identifies both buildings as flanking East Plaza both to the north and to 
the south.  Similar architectural elements are featured on both buildings.  

Assistant Director Frare advised that the next step is submitting the predesign to OFM for approval and then 
forwarding the package to the Legislature. The requested action before the committee is to approve the findings.

Chair Habib said he would prefer, within available means, to include some formal involvement by campus 
security/Washington State Patrol (WSP) to analyze security defects in the existing building and identify a menu of 
options for consideration.  The lack of security in the findings speaks to incomplete findings.  While he appreciates
evaluation of security elements would occur during the design process, a predesign is completed for a reason, as it
provides the Legislature with information on total design costs, especially if there are costs associated with security 
features.   



SCC MEETING MINUTES- FINAL
July 11, 2019
Page 4 of 11

Assistant Director Frare inquired about the expiration of the predesign appropriation.  Mr. Rice advised that the 
appropriation expired on June 1, 2019.  Assistant Director Frare asked whether other sources of funds would be 
available for security investigation.  Mr. Rice replied that he is confident ESD would partner with DES, Capitol 
Campus Security, and WSP to complete a study and identify some recommendations as part of the project.  

Assistant Director Frare questioned how the committee’s meeting schedule might affect the timing of the budget 
submittal.  Kelly Wicker advised that all budget submittals are due to the Governor’s Office in early October.  
Chair Habib suggested rescheduling the committee meeting during the second week in September to enable ESD to 
meet its deadline.

Chair Habib noted that action on the proposal would be deferred until the September meeting.  He thanked DES 
and ESD for identifying resources to address security elements. 

L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center – Predesign – Action
Chair Habib recognized Bill Frare, Assistant Director, DES; Oliver Wu, DES Project Manager; and Dr. Reuben 
Amamilo, Capital Projects Director, Department of Labor and Industries (L&I).

Manager Dragon reported DES has been working with L&I to complete a predesign for a new facility located in the 
Tumwater area to meet L&I’s operational needs for both safety and lab programs.

Dr. Amamilo briefed the committee on the purpose of the project.  Both L&I and the Washington State Department 
of Agriculture (WSDA) operate various labs.  Existing labs are located in leased and inefficient buildings.  WSDA 
currently has four labs and L&I operates the Industrial Hygiene Lab at a leased building located off Plum Street in 
Olympia.  The building was originally designed to house office employees and was adapted to accommodate the 
lab.  The location presents a series of issues with vibration and settling.  During construction, fill was added to the 
site, which contributes to ongoing settling of the building and cracks to the building’s foundation.  

WSDA’s Food and Safety Lab is located in an older building with no elevator.  The building houses three labs and 
the lack of functionality in existing lab spaces threaten the agency’s ability to respond. 

The proposal provides an opportunity for the state to combine the five labs in one building creating efficiency for 
both agencies and providing one-stop shopping for lab customers, while also reducing costs.  The agencies would 
partner on the project and create value for the state.  Another feature of the project is creating a zero net energy 
building and achieving Platinum LEED certification.

Dr. Amamilo introduced Mark Beardemphl with KMB Architects, and Maurice Perigo, Facilities Program 
Director, L&I.

Mr. Beardemphl briefed the committee on predesign efforts.  He worked closely with all project stakeholders with 
L&I and WSDA on the L&I/WSDA Safety & Health Lab and Training Center project.  Within the predesign, 
critical and important work was highlighted by both agencies.  The work completed by L&I and the Department of 
Safety and Health is to prevent worker injury, illness, and potential death.  That work is completed in offices, 
laboratories, and at a training center.  All those activities have been completed in leased facilities over the last 20 
years.  The facilities are inadequate in both performance and size.  The training center is nearly non-existent with 
training tasks completed from spec office spaces that do not meet needs.  The work completed by WSDA is 
important to protect the state’s food supply and to prevent disease outbreak and pest infestation.  The agency is 
located in inadequate and inefficient leased facilities.

Within the predesign, the recommended alternative is a new shared facility for both L&I-DOSH and WSDA 
meeting 100% of all program needs.  The proposal includes a DOSH-focused training center.  The building would 
be approximately 53,000 square feet in size.

Goals for the project include:

Create a co-located, shared use space including offices, conference spaces, and core building functions.
Facility compliant with Governors Executive Order 18-014 “Net Zero Ready.”



SCC MEETING MINUTES- FINAL
July 11, 2019
Page 5 of 11

High efficiency LEED Silver Certification (at a minimum) in accordance with Executive Order 05-01.
Modern, accessible workplace in accordance with Executive Order 16-07 – Building A Modern Work 
Environment.
Adequate facilities meeting agency mission, goals, and RCW obligations.
Modern laboratories for reliable, expeditious results to better serve stakeholders.
Increase in availability of critical training programs for workplace safety - the facility would provide the 
adequate space designed to handle the equipment and the exercises necessary for critical training.

Several alternative development scenarios were studied.  The first alternative was a larger facility accommodating 
all program needs for L&I and WSDA, as well as, a large agency-wide training center to total a 64,000 square-foot
building.  The preferred alternative (Option 2) would be a smaller building of approximately 53,000 square feet, 
which also includes a DOSH-L&I training center.  Option 3 included a 48,000 square-foot building with no 
training center.  Option 4 included a reduced program of 30,000 square feet, which would not meet programming 
requirements of both agencies.  Option 5 employed a phased approach over time.  The option was not preferred 
because of the increase in costs because of project phasing over multiple biennia.  Option 6 was the no action 
alternative as required by OFM.  The team discussed the consequences of no action.  

Chair Habib asked whether the primary purpose of the facility is for training or for testing and other lab processes.
Mr. Beardemphl said the primary function of the facility would revolve around the laboratory; however, training is 
an important element.  The training component involves training of clients, such as contractors and business 
owners on industry-specific safety procedures. Recent news of accidents at construction sites speak to the 
importance of training.  The current training site includes mock-up scenarios to teach contractors how to use fall 
protection properly on a construction site.  Currently, training is conducted within spec office space without the 
actual facilities or sufficient ceiling height, as well as outdoor space to house larger equipment.  Critical safety 
training is being conducted by the agency without the benefit of adequate training facilities.  

Chair Habib asked whether training is provided to contractors working on private projects.  Dr. Amamilo explained 
that L&I provides state-wide safety training for different construction trades, which speaks to the need to use 
similar equipment utilized in the industry.  Chair Habib asked whether training provides a revenue source for L&I.  
Dr. Amamilo said training is offered as part of the DOSH program, which is mandated by the state to reduce 
workplace injuries and death.  A death of a worker becomes a state liability.  

Mr. Beardemphl reviewed the recommended facility site.  The preferred site is the Edna Goodrich site located 
adjacent to the existing L&I Headquarters Building and west of the existing Department of Corrections 
Headquarters Building in Tumwater.  The site was recommended because of its close proximity to L&I and to 
Interstate 5. Other development factors included no latecomer fees, frontage improvements, and parking.

Manager Dragon noted that the Secretary of State’s new building proposal is on the opposite side of Linderson 
Way.  The Edna Goodrich site is part of the Tumwater Satellite Campus, which is administered as part of the State 
Capitol Campus.

Mr. Beardemphl said the team also examined additional state-owned properties.  Those alternative sites included a 
site off 88th Avenue in Olympia and a site off Desmond Drive in Lacey.  Both sites were considered but had more 
drawbacks than the Tumwater site.  The preferred Tumwater site is undeveloped.  

Manager Dragon said the site is located on the Edna Goodrich Building parcel housing both the Department of 
Corrections and Department of Transportation.  The undeveloped site is located in the rear of the parcel with access 
provided by the road serving the L&I Building.

Mr. Beardemphl reported the project budget developed during the predesign assumes a GC/CM project delivery 
method with site work specific to the preferred site.  The estimated cost of the project is $53 million with a total of 
$33 million as the maximum allowable construction cost (MACC).  

Mr. Wilund asked whether the budget estimate reflects legislatively mandated LEED Silver or LEED Platinum.  
Mr. Beardemphl said the estimate is based on achieving LEED Platinum.  During the predesign process, lifecycle 
cost analysis was completed with assumptions included for a code-compliant building, LEED silver, or a LEED 



SCC MEETING MINUTES- FINAL
July 11, 2019
Page 6 of 11

Platinum net zero energy building to meet the Governor’s Executive Order.  The analysis considered those costs 
and projected them over a 50-year lifespan.  Although the results were close, the results pointed to pursuing the net-
zero energy ready LEED Platinum building option.

Manager Dragon added that at the time the law was adopted, DES required LEED Silver, which is a different 
certification than today’s Silver certification. LEED Platinum includes different criteria with higher performance 
and efficiencies.  

Mr. Beardemphl reported the project schedule reflects the design process beginning in September and concluding 
in August 2020.  Major construction is scheduled to begin in September 2020 through October 2021 with a 
projected move-in sometime in January 2022.  The schedule is somewhat aggressive.  The GC/CM delivery 
method supports the aggressive schedule and includes an early work package to take advantage of the GC/CM’s 
involvement by working closely with the design team during schematic design.  That enables the team to develop 
the early site work package for clearing, utility, and land development beginning in June 2020.  The building 
construction package would follow in September 2020.

Manager Dragon reported the project was submitted in the budget package for 2021 and received an appropriation 
of $52.3 million.  Efforts are underway to secure the allocation necessary to begin the procurement of the 
architectural and engineering (A/E) groups, as well as the GC/CM to begin work as quickly as possible.  

Dr. Amamilo said the document accompanying the predesign would include the package of solicitations for the 
RFP/RFQ for the A/E teams and the GC/CM.  Project requirements were developed with a focus on safety and
security.  Although each lab is unique, safety requirement standards are required to meet state and federal 
requirements.  Additionally, general security of the exterior building site was considered and how it fits within the 
existing south campus area.

Chair Habib asked whether the selection of the preferred alternative and corresponding cost were determined after 
the appropriation.  Manager Dragon said the preferred alternative and project cost was determined and included 
within the proposed appropriation for the project. Chair Habib asked whether the proposal was presented to the 
Capital Budget Committee.  Mr. Dragon said the budget request was included in the agency’s request as part of its 
capital budget proposal.

Chair Habib asked how the timing of the committee’s review and preferred action fits within the overall schedule 
of the appropriation decision. Manager Dragon said that unfortunately, the committee’s review was not within that 
timeline as DES scheduled the review to the committee to present information on the preferred alternative, as well 
as the alternatives that were considered.  The predesign should have been presented to the CCDAC and the SCC 
prior to the selection of the preferred alternative; however, because of the aggressive timeline for approval of the 
capital budget during the last biennial cycle and the work required to arrive at this point, it conflicted with the 
timing of the committee’s review.  

Chair Habib pointed out the committee has met previously during the earlier part of the year.  He questioned the 
reason for not presenting the proposal to the committee during those earlier meetings.  Mr. Dragon replied that he 
did not have a good response, other than the proposal should have been presented to the committee.  The process of 
predesign, elements of a predesign, and timeline of a predesign are being comprehensively re-evaluated by the DES 
Planning and Project Delivery team to avoid those types of situations.  

Chair Habib offered that it is likely legislators would be disappointed to learn about the lack of a review as 
legislators operate under the assumption that an iterative process was completed. The Governor and OFM have a 
role to play in presenting proposals to the Legislature; however, the Legislature also refers to the committee and 
CCDAC for a public process to consider a proposal and any issues, such as security issues as mentioned during the 
previous project review.  It would likely be disappointing to legislators to learn that the process, whether good or 
bad, was not followed.  Some discussions should be scheduled to clarify the review process by the committee, as it 
appears the process has been ignored.  Funding decisions are being rendered that are zero sum at the end of the day 
without the benefit of an appropriate process.  Legislators lack the time to examine the different alternatives and 
ask questions the committee typically would have had the opportunity to ask.  The process has become 
disappointing and warrants scheduling a conversation followed by a discussion by the committee on the 



SCC MEETING MINUTES- FINAL
July 11, 2019
Page 7 of 11

requirements of the law, potential changes to the statute if necessary, or a change in practice.  It appears that action 
on the proposal is moot.  He questioned whether that stance would be fair.  

Director Liu acknowledged the points and the comments as factual.   

Chair Habib recommended scheduling a conversation between him and DES before the next meeting. Director Liu 
confirmed the request. 

East Plaza Water Infiltration Repairs (5B) – Informational
Chair Habib recognized Jeff Gonzales, DES Project Manager.

Manager Gonzales introduced project team members Jennifer Reynolds, Communications Manager, DES; Shelly 
Sadie-Hill, Property Manager, DES; and Mark Fromme, Site Representative, DES.  Pete Anderson is with 
Cornerstone Architectural Group and Neil Shaw, Project Manager, and Rory Godinez, Superintendent, are with 
Washington Patriot Construction.

The project was scheduled to respond to failures in the existing waterproof membrane with water infiltrating into 
the Plaza Garage and compromising structural integrity.  East Plaza forms the open space bordered by the 
Department of Transportation (DOT) on the east and the ESD Building on the south.  Construction on the project 
began in May 2019 and will continue through December 2019.  The project is on schedule.  

Other repairs to the Plaza Garage began in 1996 using a phased approach with repairs beginning near OB2 and the 
DOT Building.  Phase 4 was completed in 2005 through 2007 and included seismic improvements and roof 
replacements on the north half of East Plaza.    

The current phase of the project was developed in 2006 and was assigned as Phase 5 to implement a master plan 
approved by the State Capitol Committee in 1997.  No work was funded or performed between 2008 and 2014 
because of funding constraints.  Subsequently, Phase 5 was re-examined and divided into six manageable sub-
phases (A-F).  

Project Phase 5A was completed between 2015 and 2017 on repairs to Stair Towers #1 and #8.  

Mr. Gonzales displayed an aerial view of the project area.  The view depicts how the project site is situated with 
respect to the location of the DOT Building and the ESD Building.  The construction laydown area for the project 
is located on the Maple Park Annex Lot.

Mr. Anderson reviewed design components of the project.  The design of the Plaza began by examining existing 
infrastructure of the Plaza Garage.  The project encompasses a footprint of 40,000 square feet comprised of a multi-
story underground parking garage with a large roof deck with planted trees, shrubs, gardens, ramps, pathways, and 
concrete walls, etc.  The garage was designed in 1969 and constructed in 1970.  

The design function is to create a waterproof roof over the garage.  The project scope entails removing all trees, 
shrubs, grass, pavers, soil, planter walls, and other structures down to the concrete roof deck and installing new 
waterproofing at the deck level with a drainage layer and drains.  The scope also includes installation of new walls
with capstones, soil, trees, shrubs, grass, irrigation, walkways, and light fixtures to re-recreate a functioning plaza 
designed to unite several areas of East Campus.

Mr. Gonzales reported that as part of the design process, the team reviewed the work began in 1997 with the master 
planning effort.  He identified some of the stakeholders and agencies involved in the planning effort for the Phase 5 
area.  The master plan was prepared by EDAW, Inc.

Mr. Anderson said the design is consistent with the master plan created in the late 1990s.  Based on the original 
design, the team is maintaining the three main walkways in the east/west direction.  The north walkway will 
include additional landscaping, the center walkway serves as an extension from the main door of the DOT Building 
and provides a westerly pathway, and the south pathway will remain located at the edge of the garage roof.  As part 



SCC MEETING MINUTES- FINAL
July 11, 2019
Page 8 of 11

of the construction, an oval walkway will be started that will ultimately surround the fountain feature during the 
next phase of work.

An additional scope included in the project is repairing some cracks developing in the garage.  At this time, the 
cracks are minor but are of the type that left unattended could lead to serious structural issues.  The work involves
an epoxy crack repair system to extend the garage life for another 50 years.  Some additional electrical work is 
necessary in the garage involving some electrical panels and major electrical aspects of the garage, which was 
included in the budget.

Mr. Gonzales shared an aerial photograph of the entrance to the Plaza Garage from Maple Park.  Construction has 
begun and the ability to access parking has been affected.  However, impact has been minor and only to the extent 
necessary to perform specific tasks on the garage roof, such as drain work.  ESD and DOT employees have been 
encouraged to use other parking areas on campus. The main entrance to the Plaza Garage is not ADA accessible; 
however, reasonable accommodations can be accommodated.  

Manager Dragon advised that DES has not received many complaints about the lack of accessibility to and from 
the garage.  The project has required several temporary closures to the garage.

Mr. Gonzales reviewed staging sequences of the project.  A portion of the Maple Park Annex Lot will be occupied 
for construction staging.  The site includes seven reserved parking stalls and two ADA parking stalls, which will 
remain open during construction.  A lower laydown area is located near the Maple Park entrance to the garage 
requiring relocation of an existing smoking shelter and connex.  Currently, the area is occupied by construction 
equipment with some problems encountered with delivering materials to the area of the project because of some 
weight restrictions.  Much of the work will be completed at the lower level with materials lifted to the plaza deck.  

Construction activities have generated noise and vibration; however, much of that work has been completed with 
the project generating less noise.  Most of the vibration and noise was generated by the demolition work and some 
core drilling of the concrete deck.  Construction is limited to the hours of 7 a.m. to 6 p.m.  Washington Patriot 
Construction is monitoring for compliance.  

Because of the importance of safety during construction, the entire project site was fenced to eliminate access.  
During the extensive efforts involving the pouring of concrete, spotters were assigned as equipment moved back 
and forth.  Safety screens were installed and signage with detour maps posted for pedestrians.

Mr. Anderson displayed another aerial photograph of the project site and the laydown areas, as well as a larger 
aerial image relative to the entire campus.  The project website is maintained by Manager Reynolds.  The website 
publishes current stages of work and future work.

Chair Habib asked whether DES has received any complaints about the lack of ADA accessibility.  Mr. Gonzales 
reported no complaints have been received.

Mr. Dragon noted the lack of complaints speaks to efforts to publicize project activities and alternative ways to 
access the garage and other parking areas.  

Chair Habib thanked the team for the update.  

Capitol Campus Eastern Washington Butte – Informational
Chair Habib recognized Michael Van Gelder, Property Manager, DES.

Manager Van Gelder introduced Ruben Nuñez from KMB Architects who is serving as the consultant on the 
project.  

Manager Van Gelder explained that Heritage Park was envisioned by Wilder and White with the concept further 
developed by the Olmsted Brothers.  Most of the work occurred in 2004 during master planning efforts. At that 
time, a number of features were considered for future development.  One feature was the Arc of Statehood, 
symbolizing the State of Washington.  Future park development was to be cognizant of the Wilder and White 



SCC MEETING MINUTES- FINAL
July 11, 2019
Page 9 of 11

campus axis.  The park was planned to provide open space for public gatherings.  Development of the Arc of 
Statehood features began near the western Washington inlet at the south end of Capitol Lake. Another 
undeveloped feature supporting the Arc of Statehood is the Eastern Washington Butte located at the north end of 
the lake near the dam. During the 17-19 biennium, DES received some funds through the Department of 
Commerce’s Grain Program to complete conceptual design work for the Eastern Washington Butte. He
emphasized that the design was only conceptual with the goal to use elements associated with eastern Washington 
to create a conceptual representation of eastern Washington in the area known as the Eastern Washington Butte.

Mr. Nuñez provided an overview of the design concept for the Eastern Washington Butte.  Some of the 
stakeholders included DES and the North Heritage Park Development Association. Factors considered during the 
design included sightlines lines with the capitol, sea level rise and the sea level work completed by the City of 
Olympia, and three concepts of wheat, apples, and the basalt topography of eastern Washington. The design 
concept replicates the three elements within the project, which was part of the original idea within the master plan.
Because of the difficulty of growing wheat in western Washington, the idea for wheat was represented in a 
sculptural form. The design considered accessibility to the butte by pedestrians and vehicles, as well as the views 
from Capital Campus looking down to the butte.  The butte plaza is positioned in the orientation of the campus 
axis.  

Mr. Nunez shared a series of graphic illustrations depicting the conceptual design.

The basalt area was based on the landscape of the Palouse and eastern Washington.  Another idea explored 
opportunities for incorporating wind generation within the design to provide power for lights and illuminate the 
sculpture within the butte.  The team researched acrylic based products and considered the maintenance aspect of
the wheat sculpture within the plaza.

Chair Habib inquired about outreach efforts to help define some of the features that should be represented for 
eastern Washington. Mr. Nuñez replied that outreach occurred during the initial meetings with the North Heritage 
Park Development Association. Some members live in eastern Washington.  Additionally the team shared 
concepts with some legislators from eastern Washington.  Some of the concepts are also included in the original 
master plan.

Mr. Van Gelder reported the master plan effort was completed in 2004.  The plan included some broad concepts for 
the butte representing eastern Washington. In addition to basalt, other elements were mentioned.  A landscape 
architect who had worked in eastern Washington was also involved in the early efforts. Presentations were 
provided to the Eastern Legislative Caucus.  Members of the caucus offered comments and feedback.

Manager Dragon added that a large part of the effort has involved collecting conceptual design elements for further 
consideration should the project move into the design phase.  The elements representing eastern Washington are 
design concepts for discussion and additional stakeholder input. Additional stakeholder discussions will include 
the North Heritage Park Development Association and constituent representatives from eastern Washington.

The plaza feature of the Butte will include two accessible ramps that will also serve as the sea level barrier. The 
site includes an existing berm along the east side with the goal of expanding the berm along the west side as well.  

Chair Habib inquired about the possibility of deconstructing the dichotomy to the extent that the landscape 
architecture tells a story without complicating the division of the state into east and west.  He asked about the 
possibility of such a concept to help convey a “One Washington” message. Mr. Nuñez replied that symbolically, a 
way to convey that message is incorporating unity within the feature for this particular project through a human 
connection.

Manager Dragon pointed out that the Arc of Statehood is intended to represent the entire state beginning with the 
estuary/lake at one point followed by a pathway along the frontage of the lake with each county represented from 
western Washington to the area of the undeveloped butte.  Currently, the area includes an unadorned mound 
representing the butte.  The purpose of undertaking a conceptual-level plan for the Eastern Washington Butte was 
to develop information from stakeholders on elements that represent eastern Washington within the Arc of 



SCC MEETING MINUTES- FINAL
July 11, 2019
Page 10 of 11

Statehood as a whole.  The project is centric to eastern Washington because at this time, eastern Washington is not 
well represented.  

Chair Habib commented that it would be important to ensure there is a focus on highlighting eastern Washington 
while integrating some connectivity with the western Washington elements to help tell the story that the state is one 
connected state.  

Mr. Nuñez noted that the wheat sculpture would be illuminated at night.  One design feature that might be possible 
in the future is incorporating some type of light feature within the western Washington elements as a way to reflect 
how the light connection represents the symbol of a united arc.

Manager Dragon added that as part of the project design, elements revisiting the park’s concept of the Arc of 
Statehood could be pursued as part of the next budget request to ensure the design reflects a “One Washington” 
message by working with other stakeholders, the Legislature, and other community members.

Chair Habib agreed the effort would be worthwhile because there are many talented architects who could create a 
united message.  Manager Dragon responded that the concepts were intended to prompt discussions on an 
appropriate design and elements that should be included. The feedback has been important to ensure the design 
delivers an outcome that meets all expectations.   

Chair Habib suggested the process would benefit from participation from the Governor, Secretary of State Wyman, 
and Commissioner Franz as representatives of the entire state.  The Governor is a gifted artist who often provides 
foreign dignitaries with a drawing as a gift.  The Governor’s drawings are very reflective of the state’s overall 
culture.  

Manager Dragon and Mr. Nuñez affirmed the Chair’s request and agreed to pursue the suggestion during the next 
cycle of design.  

Update on 19021 Capital Budget – Informational
Chair Habib invited Assistant Director Frare to provide a status report on the capital budget.  

Assistant Director Frare updated members on seven projects within the capital budget:

East Plaza Infiltration & Elevator Repairs (Phase 5B) – The project is in progress, on schedule, and within 
budget.  The Legislature approved another $2.4 million for the project to repair underground electrical issues 
consisting of corroded conductors and water infiltrating some electrical vault rooms.  Maintaining the project 
schedule is important for the Child Care Center project because the construction laydown area occupies the site 
of the new Child Care Center.
Child Care Center – DES has pursued selection of the Design-Build team to complete the project.  Initial 
screening identified three candidates and interviews have been scheduled.  Following completion of the East 
Plaza project in December 2019, the Design-Build team will take possession of the construction laydown area.  
Cherberg and Insurance Buildings – Both buildings are scheduled for new roofs.  The projects were 
advertized and contracts were awarded.  DES has issued a notice to proceed on the projects.  Both projects will 
be completed before the end of this year’s construction season.
Building Envelope Repair – The project involves repairs to the exterior sandstone on the Capital Courthouse 
Building located at the intersection of Capital Way and 11th Avenue.  The sandstone constructed building 
requires some repairs in areas where sandstone has cracked.  Some of the sandstone areas will be removed, 
cleaned, and replaced to preserve the envelope of the building.  
Newhouse Predesigns – An alternatives analysis was completed for the Newhouse Building with three 
alternatives identified and developed to a predesign stage.  The typical process for predesign entails the owner 
selecting the alternative to move forward.  For this particular project, the owner of the building is the 
Legislature.  DES is seeking more guidance to select the preferred alternative to move forward.  Meetings were 
scheduled with the administration of both the House and the Senate to ascertain which alternative to move 
forward.   



SCC MEETING MINUTES- FINAL
July 11, 2019
Page 11 of 11

Department of Transportation Building – Predesign is currently underway to identify project alternatives.
The committee is scheduled to receive a briefing at its next meeting.  The DOT Building is similar to the ESD 
Building in that it was constructed in the 1960s and has not been seismically retrofitted.  
Office of Insurance Commissioner – DES is initiating work on the predesign of a new building for the Office 
of the Insurance Commissioner, who wants to be located on Capitol Campus.  DES contacted other agencies to 
identify another potential anchor tenant.  DES is evaluating different sites on the campus to include the GA 
site, ProArts site, and other sites identified in the budget proviso.  Currently, the Insurance Commissioner has 
an office in the Insurance Building with most of the administration located in Tumwater in a leased building.  

Chair Habib requested consideration of scheduling a briefing or an executive session (if necessary) on the results of 
the campus security study at the next meeting.  Director Liu replied that although the security presentation has not 
been finalized at this time, it should be finalized in time to include it on the committee’s agenda for the next 
meeting.  

Public Comments and Closing Remarks - Informational
There were no public comments.

Chair Habib reported the next meeting of the SCC would be rescheduled and posted.  

Adjournment
With there being no further business, Chair Habib adjourned the meeting at 11:45 a.m. 

Prepared by Valerie L. Gow, Recording Secretary/President,
Puget Sound Meeting Services, psmsoly@earthlink.net

Approved by SCC at the September 19, 2019 Meeting without modifications.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 


